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VISION

Cantilan Bank will be the most dynamic and trusted community bank in the country.

MISSION

Deliver excellent community banking services to local and international clients.
Develop and support financial inclusion and environmental protection programs.
Empower a professional and motivated workforce.

CORE VALUES

Transparency – CANBNK values reliable and timely disclosure of information to its clients and share-
owners.

Accountability – CANBNK and all its employees take full accountability and responsibility for all our
actions.

Commitment to Excellence – We value exceeding the client’s expectations. CANBNK as a friendly
community bank aims to deliver excellence in all our services.

Teamwork – CANBNK as a growing company values teamwork, “together everyone achieves more”.
CANBNK values alignment of each employee’s personal goals to that of the Vision, Mission, and Core
Values of the company.

Integrity – CANBNK aims to become the most trusted community bank in the country. This vision reflects
our value for Integrity and Honesty in all our undertakings.

Corporate Citizenship – CANBNK values reaching out to the community. We value Corporate Social
Responsibility and aim to develop and support financial inclusion and environmental protection program
as stated in Mission Statement #2 for the communities in our areas of operation.
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CANTILAN BANK
YOUR FRIENDLY COMMUNITY BANK
About Cantilan Bank
Established in 1980, Cantilan Bank (CANBNK) has helped improve the economy of many
communities through its innovative products and services. With its network of 46 branches and
branch lites, the Bank provides financial access to over 100 communities across 12 provinces in
Mindanao and the Visayas. CANBNK is regarded as one of the leading rural banks in the
country and was awarded the Digital Trailblazer award by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas in
2019.    

Innovation is the bank's strategic imperative and it considers digital technology and partnerships
as the key drivers for financial inclusion, especially in the post-Covid-19 era. In January 2019,
with the support of the ADB and the BSP's approval, Cantilan Bank became the first bank in the
Philippines to go live on a cloud-based core banking system. The pioneering project paved the
way for 26 other rural banks to migrate to the cloud and has positioned Cantilan Bank at the
frontlines of financial inclusion through digital transformation.  In 2021, CANBNK achieved the
following Digital Transformation (DX) milestones: Launched the Omni-channel Mobile Banking
Service/App, got the approval of EPFS license, EMI License, and Agency banking from the BSP.

Cantilan Bank is regarded as one of the top rural banks in the country with total resources of
Php 2.3 billion as of December 2021.

Vision and Mission
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CORPORATE POLICY

Our brand statement "Cantilan Bank - Your Friendly Community Bank", encapsulates our
brand and our strategy. It explains who we are, what we do, and what we want to be known
for. Our strategy of creating easy, fun banking by reducing product complexity and KYC
complexity and by driving up approachability and transaction ease is defined in our brand.
Our official colors of yellow and dark blue evoke freshness, happiness, optimism, and loyalty.

CANBNK's BRAND

BUSINESS MODEL
Our business model is our core strategy for providing customer value. 

Business Model Canvas



LT. GEN. WILLIAM K. HOTCHKISS III (RET)

 www.can t i l anbank .com

CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE
2021 proved to be a year that tested Cantilan Bank’s true resilience
and commitment to striving for excellence amidst the unprecedented
COVID-19 global pandemic. We have weathered the storm and
emerged stronger, continuing to pursue operational excellence and
following through with our financial inclusion strategies as we strive
toward our vision.

Our journey to shift to a cloud-based Software as a Service (SaaS) as
our core banking system has created new opportunities for us to
deliver digital financial services to unbanked and underbanked
individuals in the communities. As we embrace this cloud-based core
banking technology, we proved our resiliency and business continuity
amidst the rapidly changing customer expectations, increasing
internal and external regulations, intensifying competition among
banks and other players, the COVID-19 pandemic, and most
especially the aftermath of Super typhoon Odette. This innovation has
given us the capacity to recover quickly from the difficulties and
made us the very first bank to provide banking services to Typhoon
Odette-affected areas.

We are proud of what we have accomplished throughout the years.
As we look to the future, we will continue to build on the pillars that
have helped us become successful: Cantilan Bank will remain
focused on its commitment and determination of providing quality
and responsive banking services with an emphasis on financial
inclusion and corporate social responsibility towards sustainable
growth in the communities that we serve. 

Looking back to the profitable year just passed, I would like to
commend the management and staff for outstanding performance on
their respective responsibilities. Our deepest gratitude                     
 goes to the members of the board, who have been the                     
 guiding light towards the achievement of our corporate                
 vision and mission, and, most of all, to our dear                     
 stockholders and clients, for their unfailing trust, loyalty,                       
 and confidence in our bank. 
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PRESIDENT'S MESSAGE

BRIG. GEN. CHARLES Y. HOTCHKISS (RET)

2021 was quite a year. We embraced it with a new sense of hope and a
more optimistic outlook even with all the challenges and adversities this
year had in store for us. Despite the uncertainties brought about by the
global pandemic that created very challenging conditions across the
banking industry, we remained determined and committed in our vision
and mission to deliver excellent community banking services to our
clients.

We are proud to say that we surpassed every challenge in the past year
with pride and success as we continued to strengthen our efforts in
deepening financial inclusion strategies geared towards better customer
experience and long-term value for our stakeholders. Despite these
unprecedented challenges, we were able to shift to new ways of working
by quickly embracing the digital tools, services, and platforms that were
made available to us as a result of our digital transformation journey. 

A few years ago, the bank embarked on a digital transformation journey
to prepare us for a highly technological future. In 2019, we became the
first bank in the country to adopt a cloud-based core banking system,
earning us the Digital Trailblazer Award from the Bangko Sentral ng
Pilipinas (BSP). The cloud-based system proved indispensable for disaster
recovery and business continuity during the global pandemic and the
recent onslaught of Super typhoon Odette. 

Last year, the BSP issued us two licenses: EPFS and EMI as an electronic
money issuer (EMI) which allowed us to launch our mobile banking app
called iCAN. This app is a game-changer as this makes available to our
clients a safe and secure platform to allow them to do banking wherever
they are using their mobile devices. As we embraced this technological
innovation, we enabled communities in the countryside to achieve the
                         best customer experience and value of convenience and
                          efficiency, which will sustain our drive towards the future.

                          Allow me then to thank our valued clients for their 
                           continued trust, loyalty, and confidence in our bank. May I 
                           also, extend my gratitude to the Board of Directors for their 
                                  wisdom and valuable guidance to pursue excellence 
                                     and commitment to our corporate mission. My 
                                        congratulations to all employees for their 
                                           outstanding effort, dedication and support 
                                               towards our main goal of offering the friendliest 
                                                 service and innovative products to the 
                                                  evolving needs of our clients.



Solo (Figures are in Philippine Peso)

2020
As Restated

2021

Profitability
   Total Net Interest Income
   Total Non-Interest Income
   Total Non-Interest Expenses
   Pre-provision profit
   Allowance for credit losses
   Net Income

Selected Balance Sheet Data
   Liquid Assets
   Gross Loans
   Total Assets
   Deposits
   Total Equity

Selected Ratios
   Return on equity
   Return on assets
   Capital Adequacy Ratio

Per common share data 
   Net Income per share:
   Basic
   Diluted
   Book value

Others
   Cash dividends declared
   Headcount
   Officers
   Staff

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

 201,807,508
54,995,070

251,198,463
5,604,115

103,845,513
(68,092,045)

 638,469,990
1,592,426,399
2,234,985,002
1,739,361,407

319,001,579

 -19.32%
-2.93%
8.43%

(123.29)

577.61

 ------
453

63
390

218,306,345
111,568,380
259,916,254

69,958,471
21,735,691
16,931,274

 620,930,076
1,609,489,181
2,262,856,514
1,677,064,313

359,949,166

4.99%
0.75%

12.17%

 
                         30.66

651.75

------
457

63
394
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ASSETS

46 Offices
23 Branches
23 Branch Lite Units
21 ATMs
104 POS

PAGE 8 |  ANNUAL REPORT 2021 www.can t i l anbank .com

2 0 2 1
A T  A  G L A N C E

P 2.3 Bil l ion

Official Launching of iCan Mobile
Banking App, l ive since October
2021.  
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

PAID-UP CAPITAL

All figures (in millions of Pesos)

TOTAL EQUITY NET INCOME



PAID-UP CAPITAL
 

Php 276.1 million

TOTAL EQUITY
 

Php 359.9 million

NET INCOME
 

Php 16.9 million
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

In 2021, the business climate began to improve due to the easing of
quarantine restrictions, intensified vaccination campaigns, and increased
social mobil ity. There has been a gradual increase in economic activity as a
result, demonstrating how people and businesses are coping.

And in response to the country's gradual economic opening in 2021, Cantilan
Bank's assets grew by 1%, from P2.23B to P2.26B. Its gross loan portfolio
also increased by 1.1%, from P1.59B to P1.61B. The loan increase was driven
by increases in SME and home financing loans.

Although Typhoon Odette devastated areas where Cantilan Bank primarily
operates in December 2021, the Bank expects its portfolio to grow by 8-10%
by 2023. This growth wil l be attributed to the continued growth of SME loans
and the expansion of Visayas operations.

Cantilan Bank also registered a net profit of P16.9M in 2021, which represents
a 125% increase compared to the loss of P68M brought about by the
pandemic in 2020. The profit growth was driven both by the increase in net
interest margins as well as by the growth in loans. The earnings for the entire
year translate into a return on equity of 5.0% for the bank.

Interest income also increased by 8% to P201.8M. The increase was largely
due to lower provisions and an improvement in asset quality. In addition, non-
interest income increased by 103% from 2020's P55M to 2021's P111.6M.

There was a 4% drop in deposits from P1.74B to P1.68B. During the time that
community quarantines were eased and nationwide vaccination programs for
COVID-19 were intensified, there was a surge in economic activity.
Businesses began to operate and surplus funds were withdrawn to support
their operations. Also, the bank lowered interest rates on time deposits in the
same year.

It was anticipated that the deposits would be reduced. Instead, the Bank
leveraged the discounted interest rates offered by its lending partners for its
non-loan business operations and digital innovations. As a result, the cost of
funds remains below 1%.



CAPITAL STRUCTURE & CAPITAL ADEQUACY

CAPITAL STRUCTURE &
CAPITAL ADEQUACY

TIER 1 CAPITAL AND BREAKDOWN OF
ITS COMPONENTS

TIER 2 CAPITAL AND A BREAKDOWN
OF ITS COMPONENTS
 
DEDUCTIONS FROM TIER 1 (50%) AND
TIER 2 (50%) CAPITAL;

TOTAL QUALIFYING CAPITAL;

CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS FOR
CREDIT RISK;

CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS FOR
MARKET RISK;

CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS FOR
OPERATIONAL RISK;

TOTAL AND TIER 1 CAPITAL
ADEQUACY RATIO ON BOTH SOLO
AND CONSOLIDATED BASES
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 327,638,777
 
 

17,944,443
 

           
 (80,711,681)

 
 

264,871,539
 

1,699,085,033
 
 

-
 
 

477,286,662
 
 

12.17%
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S OPINION

We have audited the financial statements of Cantilan Bank, Inc. (A Rural Bank) (the “Bank”) which
comprise the statements of financial position as at December 31, 2021, and 2020, and the
statements of income, statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and
statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS), as modified by the application of the staggered
booking of allowance for credit losses over a maximum period of five years, a financial reporting
relief issued by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) and approved by the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC).
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O P E R A T I O N A L  H I G H L I G H T S
INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

CREDIT AND LOANS
The bank’s total loan portfolio at the end of December 2021 stood at P1.609B, reflecting an
increase of .87% from the previous year, while at the same time decreased Past Due by 2.36pp
or 33.27M in amount. 

As part of the bank’s continued journey to digital transformation, the mobile app loan application
and processing was launched in the iCAN mobile app. Initially tested in three (3) loan products:
Bonus Loan, Emergency Loan, and Back to Back Loans to two (2) branches: Cantilan and Madrid
Branch. 

Also, this year, the bank launched a new loan product: Merchant Revolving Fund or MeRF Loan,
a credit facility for business operators who wants to engage in mobile app fund transfer services.

Cantilan Bank (CANBNK) is a rural bank serving over 100 underbanked communities across 12
provinces in Mindanao and the Visayas. CANBNK faced the pandemic with a dynamic platform
and with a ready digital roadmap, whose timeline was accelerated in order to adapt to the new
environment. In 2021, CANBNK was approved by the BSP the License to Operate as an
Electronic Money Issuer – Bank (EMI-Bank), Offer Type A Advance Electronic Payment and
Financial Services (EPFS) through a Mobile Banking App, Use Cash Agents, and Enter into a
Cloud Outsourcing Agreement. CANBNK officially launched its mobile banking app in October
and was awarded the NorthStar Impact Award during the inaugural APIX awards at the Singapore
Fintech Festival – in Nov 2021.

Day 1 after Typhoon, only 3 out of 46 branches were online. 
Day 2 after the typhoon, 1/3 of branches were online and operations-ready and ATMs were
restored in Cantilan and 29% of CANBNK ATM locations.
Day 3 after the typhoon, Cantilan Main Branch, accommodated the financial services need
(Fund Transfer, Account opening, ATM Withdrawals, Communications, logistics, and Relief
Efforts) by the residents and tourists from Siargao, 52km south of Dapa. 
Before Christmas Eve, just one week after the typhoon, 78% of branches were online.
Office in Del Carmen, Siargao was the first bank to open on December 23, 2021, one of the
most heavily affected island during typhoon Odette. The office efficiently services the much-
needed finances on the island.

Cantilan Bank, Inc. which operates 23 Branches, 23 Branch Lite Units, 21 ATMs and 104 POS
across 12 provinces in Mindanao and Visayas provided financial services to over 100
underbanked communities. CANBNK will continue to expand and will open new branches in 2022
as BSP recently approved CANBNK’s license applications in 2 areas in Mindanao and 1 in the
Visayas. 

Despite the ongoing crisis due to covid-19, CANBNK continued to provide high-quality services to
132,850 clients who transacted 11.97B Deposits and 8.5B withdrawals.

During typhoon Odette in December 2021, CANBNK demonstrated its resilience, the capacity to
recover quickly from difficulties with the help of our cloud-based system. CANBNK easily
recovered from the disaster and continued serving the community.
 

BRANCH BANKING



From October until December 31, 2021, Cantilan Bank offered Time Deposit at a 5% interest rate
also known as TD5. TD5 generated 70 accounts and new users of CANBNK’s iCAN Mobile
Banking App. TD5 generated a total of P53.8 M portfolio.
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O P E R A T I O N A L  H I G H L I G H T S
BRANCH BANKING

On October 8, 2021, CANBNK launches its latest digital channel, the iCAN Mobile Banking App.
The iCAN Mobile Banking App delivers convenient, safe, and secure cashless financial services
to the underbanked and underserved communities in the Philippines. CANBNK has a total of 16
Merchants for the year 2021.

iCAN Mobile Banking App provides easy access to core transactions such as Fund Transfer
within the bank and to other banks via Pesonet, Bills Payment, Buy & Send Prepaid Load, and
Receive/Pay via QR anytime and anywhere. The iCAN Mobile Banking is an addition to the
bank’s existing digital channel which is the Automated Teller Machine (ATM). 

The year 2021 marks the full operation of CANBNK’s ATM services with 21 ATM terminals that
are strategically deployed in 20 offices. Within its first year of operation since September 2020,
the Bank generated a total income of Php 8.75 million which contributed a big impact on the
Bank’s revenue. For the year 2022, the Bank aims to widen its reach to greater heights by
acquiring 21 new ATM machines from Diebold Nixdorf making 42 ATM terminals in total.
CANBNK’s digital transformation journey paves the way for the countryside’s financial inclusion.

DIGITAL  CHANNELS

FUND MANAGEMENT

As of December 31, 2021, Cantilan Bank had a Liquidity Coverage Ratio of 40.8%, meaning that
it had more than enough liquid assets to cover its liabilities. The bank's cash and cash equivalent
stood at P627 million, with a surplus of P56M above the required levels.

The increase was primarily due to net proceeds from its availed loans which are offered from zero
to two percent per annum.

The funding costs also were below the bank's range of 2%. This was due to the leverage brought
about by the cheap sourced funds from deposits and external borrowings. The cost of funds by
end of the year was at 0.7%.

Cantilan Bank is on track to significantly increase its liquidity by 2022, primarily driven to support
its branch expansion, acquisition of additional ATM units, and increased services. The bank has
21 ATM units and is projected to increase significantly by next year. 
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O P E R A T I O N A L
H I G H L I G H T S

To retain its integrity, the bank has been able to control the Cyber-attacks by partially outsourcing
to a trusted security operations center, through outsourced services. The outsourced services
provided by Security Operations Center-as-a-Service (SOCaaS), is a comprehensive threat
management service that monitors multiple network devices, alerts the organization in case of
cyberattacks, it also recommends a course of action, and covers the quick incident response to
mitigate the threat. The bank itself is strictly complying with its policies, which are implemented
as it values every detail of its clients.

Innovation through Technology is quite advantageous at this time, particularly to the competition
of business sectors nowadays. As one of the missions of CANBNK is to deliver excellent services
to its clients, the bank has strategic ways of improving this aspect.

Digital Transformation (DX) is CANBNK’s primary IT Strategy. With the expertise of CANBNK’s
Information Technology (IT) team with the cooperation of the Project Management team, the bank
has successfully launched its new product the iCAN Mobile Banking App. Through this App.,
clients can feel the convenience of doing different kinds of transactions and services without
hassling to come personally to the CANBNK office. The iCAN Mobile Banking App. has been
effectively launched to the public on October 8, 2021.

Since the bank is already using a Cloud-based Core banking system, its IT team is always
prepared for improvements in the means of technical configurations. On October 28, 2021, the
implementation of Cloud Active Directory throughout the CANBNK branches was completed.

As the CANBNK experienced a recent disaster in almost all of its offices, the bank remained
resilient and was able to recover and respond within 72 hours. Having a resilient service to its
customers means the bank is always combat-ready when a failure occurs. The part of the bank’s
system affected by the typhoon is small in comparison to the system as a whole. The bank is also
endeavoring for a thorough Business Continuity Risks and Disaster Recovery to encompass all
aspects of resilience.

Above all, the bank together with its IT team is moving forward for the triumph of the bank with
highly motivated people, innovative leadership, and resiliency.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
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O P E R A T I O N A L
H I G H L I G H T S

BY EMPLOYMENT TYPE:

405
52

Regular Employees
Probationary

255 or 56%
198 or 44%

Male
Female

BY GENDER

BY AGE GROUP:

< 30
31 - 40
41 - 50

> 50

218
170
58
7

BY JOB LEVEL:

Staff
Supervisory

Middle Management
Senior Management

328
73
54
2

The Human Resources Division is the main driver in fulfilling CANBNK’s mission to empower a
professional and motivated workforce.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Total Workforce as of December 31, 2021– 457

Understanding and responding to the crisis initially brought by COVID – 19 enables us to create
the best possible environment for our workforce. In 2020-2021, Cantilan Bank built on a number
of initiatives to improve existing HR systems and processes as well as develop new tools to
enhance the employee experience.

In line with our focus on internal mobility, we have continued our efforts to retain expertise and
experience by providing attractive career opportunities as the Bank shifts its direction into a
digitally-transformed organization. New positions were opened as a result of the creation of new
departments and the proactive and continuing review of the organizational structures and
manpower complement of the various divisions and departments to suit the current manpower
need of the organization. Indeed, internal mobility helps us turn necessary restructuring into an
opportunity, optimizing employee productivity and managing attrition of 90 employees of which 3
are officers and 87 are rank and file employees. 
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O P E R A T I O N A L
H I G H L I G H T S

HUMAN RESOURCES

STAFF ATTRITION STATISTICS

27 or 48%
29 or 52%

Male
Female

BY GENDER

BY AGE GROUP:
< 30

31 - 40
41 - 50

> 50

32 or 57%
18 or 32%
6 or   1 %

0

BY JOB LEVEL:
Staff

Supervisory
Middle Management
Senior Management

45 or 80%
5 or 9%
6 or 1%

0

As we adopt digital tools and new ways of working, it is highly necessary for us to ensure our
employees are equipped with the right skills. To support this objective, we provide access to
learning - for 2021, we are able to conduct and provide a total of 124 Internal Trainings and 82
External Trainings with a total of 924 hours availed by an aggregate of 457 employees, of which
63 are officers, and 394 are rank and file - this covers the entire range of mandatory training and
available learning at CANBNK. Additionally, to reflect our commitment to help the employees
develop professionally and personally and to advance their careers, we are pursuing an
Exchange Study Program allowing employees to gain exposure in various fields of the Bank
operations.

Total #  of Trainings
 

Total #  of Trainings Hours
 

Total # of Employees
Trained

TRAINING HOURS

124
 

510 hrs. & 45 mins.
 

456
 
 

82
 

414 hrs. & 5 mins.
 

100
 

Internal Trainings External Trainings

Notably, the bank introduced Oplan Lizard Tail-CANBNK’s COVID-19 Business Continuity Plan.
Oplan Lizard Tail aims to protect CANBNK’s assets, especially its human resources that must be
defended against the devastating attack by COVID-19 so that banking services in CBI’s area of
operations may be sustained throughout the crises period and continue after, even with reduced
resources but with undiminished zeal. In order to elevate employee morale, during the onset of
the pandemic, the Bank provided free meals for stranded employees as a result of the travel
restrictions and provided free transportation to commuting employees. In 2021, no employee
retrenchment happened in CANBNK.
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O P E R A T I O N A L
H I G H L I G H T S

Despite the crisis, we are able to regularize 9 employees, offered promotions to 55 employees,
onboarded 57 new hires, and conducted 4 batches of General Orientation Course- a 5-day in-
house training program for newly-hired employees that provides an overview of the entire bank
operations before their actual exposure at the branches.

HUMAN RESOURCES

2
6
5
5
 

As we continue to face the adversities brought about by the pandemic, HRD will continue to offer
quality training and strengthen the incentive and promotion policies of the Bank targeting
production efficiency of manpower and retaining top talent and high potential employees in the
organization.

May 24-28, 2021
July 26-30, 2021

September 6-10, 2021
October 25-29, 2021

 

Total
Participants/Hired

Date Held

Batch - 55
Batch - 56
Batch-57
Batch-58

 

General Orientation
Course

Male

11
19
12
15

 

Female

9
13
7

10
 

NEW EMPLOYEES HIRED FOR  2020:

Strategy management involves cycling through three high-level processes: strategy formulation, strategy
execution, and strategy learning that cycles back into strategy formulation. These high-level processes,
however, are broken down into nine cross-functional processes (five core processes and four integrative
processes): Balanced Scorecard Management, Organizational Alignment, Strategy Reviews, Strategic
Planning, Strategy Communication, Planning/Budgeting, Initiative Management, Workforce Alignment, and
Best Practice Sharing.

2021 continued with clear strategic guidance from our 2020-2024 Strategic Plan, where innovation is
highlighted as its strategic imperative. The bank worked to align its innovation goals with the BSP’s Digital
Payments Transformation Roadmap 2020-2023, where 50% of the retail transaction will be digital and 70%
of Filipino adults are financially included. As such, a High-tech/High-touch strategy was set into motion
since 2019, where CANBNK differentiates itself as a digitally-pioneering financial institution, which utilizes
its strengths as a community bank that understands the needs of the rural communities.

Crafting a Digital Roadmap prior to the pandemic also became an opportunity for the bank to step forward
and accelerate its digital transformation journey.

In 2021, the BSP approved CANBNK’s EPFS license, EMI license, Agency banking, and Approval for cloud.
In October, CANBNK launched the iCAN Mobile Banking App.

Looking at the industry as a whole, surviving the pandemic meant progressing to the digital space and
building strong partnerships that will help create a sustainable impact. CANBNK was able to remain agile
and resilient due to its preemptive and forward-looking plans for digital transformation and is now
continuing to adapt to the changing environment, while diligently fulfilling its fundamental role in the
development of resilient communities and sustainable local economies.

OFFICE OF STRATEGIC MANAGEMENT 



Cantilan Bank recognizes that banking is inherently a business of managing risks. As a bank, it
is incumbent upon Cantilan Bank to manage risks such as credit, collection, liquidity,
reputation, operational, compliance, IT, business continuity, and strategy, among many others.
These risks must then be balanced against the bank’s business goals and strategies as well as
market opportunities and innovations – all tempered by prudential requirements.

The Bank’s risk-taking activities are governed by an overarching policy framework with a scope
that covers the following:1) balance risks with the bank’s sustainable growth, profitability, and
capital adequacy objectives 2) align the bank’s risk management processes and internal
controls with the best practices and banking standards and regulations 3) develop bank-wide
risk awareness.

The risk governance framework provides the foundation and guidelines for the bank to
properly identify, measure, control, and monitor risks that emanate from certain business
functions and from particular products or portfolios. Under this framework, effective and
efficient risk management policies, procedures, and guidelines are continuously developed
and designed in compliance with the respective risk and capital management regulations.

Currently, the Bank does not have a separate board-level risk management committee. All
risks are managed and reported in the respective committees. Significant risks are reported to
the Board and the Board provides general risk oversight. 

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK
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RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE OF CANTILAN BANK

BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

IT STEERING 
COMMITTEE

AUDIT & COMPLIANCE
COMMITTEE

CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE

COMMITTEE
CREDIT COMMITTEE

EXECUTIVE
COMMITTEE

ASSET & LIABILITY 
COMMITTEE
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OVERALL RISK  MANAGEMENT CULTURE AND PHILOSOPHY
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SCOPE OF RISKS
REPORTED TO THE

FOLLOWING
COMMITTEES:

FREQUENCY OF
MEETING

Credit Risks 

Liquidity Risks,
Market Risk,
Interest Rate
Risks

IT and
Information
Security Risks 

Management Meeting , 
 Executive Committee     
(EXECOM) , Asset and
Liability Committee       
 (ALCO) and Board of
Directors 

Management Meeting

Management Meeting,
Asset and Liability
Committee (ALCO)
Executive Committee    
 (EXECOM) and Board of
Directors

Management Meeting,
Information Security
Steering Committee      
 (ITSC), Board of
Directors 

Monthly

Monthly

Monthly

Monthly

Table below shows the scope of risks, reporting authority and frequency of meeting:

REPORTED BY:

Credit and
Loans Division 

Credit Risk
Management
Division

Fund
Management
Division Head 

Information
Technology
Division 

LIST OF REPORTS

1. Asset Quality Scorecard
2.Comparative Loan    
 Portfolio
3.Portfolio Loan Mix 
4.Portfolio per Loan
Segment
5.Loans for Approval 

1.Loan Applications
Applied for the month
2.Loan Applications
Approved for the month
3.Loan Applications
Postponed for the month
4.Approved CIBI report for
the month 

1.Deposit and Loan
Performance
2.Bills Payable 
3.Loans to Deposit Ratio
4.Liquidity Coverage Ratio
5.Bank Resources Report
6.Cost of Fund
7.Stress Testing report 
     a. CAR performance 
     b. Liquidity Gap
     c. Profitability
8.Maturity Gap Analysis
9.Liquidity Scorecard
10.Product Performance 
    a. Manual Interbank
Fund Transfer
    b. PESONET

1. Fusion Hub Usage for
the month
2. Top 5 Branch/Office
with the lowest
Availability Rate
3. Hardware Incident
Report
4. ATM Incident Report
5. IT Strategic Plan
milestones and timelines
6. ePLDT SOC-as-a-
Service
-Security Operation
Center (SOC report)
-Endpoint Advanced
Security ( EAS report ) 
7.IPVPN Disconnection
Update
8.Other updates
-IT plans and projects
-Bluehost                                
 (cantilanbank.com)
updates
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SCOPE OF RISKS
REPORTED TO THE

FOLLOWING
COMMITTEES:

FREQUENCY OF
MEETING

IT and
Information
Security Risks

 

Operational Risks 

Management Meeting,
Executive Committee    
 (EXECOM), Information
Security Steering
Committee (ITSC) and
Board of Directors

Management Meeting,
Information Security
Steering Committee      
 (ITSC), Board of
Directors

Project Management
Team headed by the
Project Executive – the
EVP

Management Meeting,
Executive Committee    
 (EXECOM) and Board of
Directors

Management Meeting,
Executive Committee    
 (EXECOM) and Board of
Directors

Monthly

Monthly

Monthly

Monthly

Monthly

Table below shows the scope of risks, reporting authority and frequency of meeting:

REPORTED BY:

Digital Channel
Division

Information
Security Officer 

Project
Manager

Branch Banking
Division

Accounting
Division  

LIST OF REPORTS

1.Compliance with
BancNet Service Level
Standards
2.ATM Transaction
Summary 
3.ATM Performance
4.Mobile App (MA)
Registration Status and
Transaction Summary
5.Mobile app monthly
Transaction
6.E-banking services 
7.Mobile Banking Loan
Processing

1.Info/Cyber Security Tips
2.Deactivation Report
3.Log-in Reports
4.Status of compliance to
BSP ROE directives and
BSP Findings
5.IT Assessment Reports 
6.ePLDT SOC-as-a-Service
-Security Operation
Center ( SOC report)
-Endpoint Advanced
Security ( EAS report ) 
7.For approval of new
policies
8.Amendment of new
policies

Project Management
Reports 
1.Project Status
2.GS-CNRL Ticket
Breakdown
3.Roadmap Prioritization
4.Project Risks
5.Other updates –
Instapay, EC Pay

1.Deposit Performance
2.Deposit Income
3.Remittance and other
Services
4.Insurance Report
5. Branching updates

1.Consolidated Financial
Condition
2.Other Administrative
Expenses for the month
3.Financial Ratio Analysis
4.CAR Performance
5.Book Value per Share
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SCOPE OF RISKS
REPORTED TO THE

FOLLOWING
COMMITTEES:

FREQUENCY OF
MEETING

Operational Risks

Regulatory
/Compliance
and AML Risk 
 

Legal Risks and
Strategic Risks

Management Meeting

Management Meeting

Management Meeting

Management Meeting 

Board of Directors -
Acquisition of Fixed
Asset

Management Meeting –
Admin matters 
, Audit and Compliance
Committee and Board
of Directors

Management Meeting-
Admin matters  Audit
and Compliance
Committee, EXECOM.
Corporate Governance
Committee- if
applicable   and Board
of Directors

Board of Directors

Monthly

Monthly

Monthly

Monthly

Monthly

Monthly

Monthly

REPORTED BY:

Human
Resource
Division 

Marketing
Department 

Security Office

Logistics
Reports 

Internal Audit
Division 

Chief
Compliance
Officer 

EVP/OSM
Head/ Chief
Technology
Officer  

LIST OF REPORTS

1.Total Manpower
Headcount 
2.Attrition
3.Employee Movement
4.Training conducted and
attended 
5.Manpower Need
6.Budget Monitoring
Other HR updates

1.Market Segmentation
2.Customer Feedback
Form Updates
3.Marketing updates 

1.COVID status report 
2.Implementation of
safety protocols                   
 (quarantine, vaccination
program and acquisition
of equipment) 
3.Updates and Status
related to Security 

1.Status of construction of
bank premises
2.Acquisition of Fixed
Asset
3.Updates on repairs and
maintenance
4.Significant issues and
updates. ex- fuel and
power increase 
5.Other updates 

1.Internal Audit Significant
Issues 
2.Internal Audit Reports 

1.Compliance Report
2.Significant and latest
circulars issued 
3.AML Report 

1.Information Technology
Steering Committee
Reports 
2.Balance Scorecard
reports
Digital Transformation       
 (DX) Roadmap 



RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

Credit Risk is the risk of loss arising from a borrower’s failure to meet the terms of any contract with
the bank or otherwise perform as agreed. Credit risk stems from the probability that the borrower or
counterparty in a transaction may default and cause potential loss to the Bank. This is because it is
exposed to risk as a direct lender. The Board-level Credit Committee is primarily responsible for
overseeing credit risk management.

The assessment of this risk, in relation to its impact on capital adequacy, is governed by the relevant
provisions as prescribed by BSP Circular 855.

Credit Risk Management Division (CRMD) is an independent division under the direct supervision of
the Office of the President whose function is to provide independent credit review, central appraisal
and central credit investigation and background investigation (CIBI).
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CREDIT RISK

SCOPE OF RISKS REPORTED TO THE
FOLLOWING COMMITTEES:

FREQUENCY OF
MEETING

Legal Risks and
Strategic Risks

Capital Risks

Management Meeting,
Executive Committee          
 (EXECOM), and Board of
Directors

Asset and Liability
Committee (ALCO),
Corporate Governance
Committee (Corp Gov)
Executive Committee          
 (EXECOM) , and Board of
Directors

Monthly

REPORTED BY:

Legal Division
Head

Fund
Management
Division

LIST OF REPORTS

1.Total ROPA Accounts 
2.Usufruct Collection
for the month 
3.ROPA Sales 
4.Income and Expenses
Statement of ROPA 
5.ITL Updates: Small
Claims Cases Filed 
6.Legal cases filed 

Capital Development
Plan status
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LIQUIDITY RISK, MARKET RISK, INTEREST RATE RISK
Liquidity Risk – The risk of loss arising from a bank’s inability to meet its obligations when
they come due without incurring unacceptable losses

Market Risk – risk of loss arising from movements in market prices

Interest Rate Risk – risk of loss arising from movements in interest rates
The Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO) is primarily responsible for the management of
these risks. The role of ALCO is to manage CANBNK's overall assets and liabilities. It shall
specifically oversee the asset/liability position, liquidity, and funds management, and
investment portfolio functions of the bank.

Risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people, and systems
or from external events

The Operations Group is primarily responsible for the management of operational risks. The
Internal Audit and Compliance control functions provide the necessary components for proper
risk governance and oversight. The Internal Audit Division and the Compliance Division both
report directly to the board-level Audit and Compliance Committee and to the Board of
Directors.

OPERATIONAL RISK

Risk of loss resulting from failure of computer hardware, software, devices, systems,
applications and networks

Risk of loss resulting from information security/cyber security breaches

The Bank’s IT Risk Management System encompasses IT and IS risk management and
governance principles, policies, and procedures that are aligned with the relevant BSP
regulations. The Information Security Officer has bank-wide oversight responsibility to validate
if policies, standards, guidelines, processes, and procedures are in place and adhered to
support the risk management program. Meanwhile, the internal IT audit provides assurance
that management processes are adequate to identify and monitor significant risks. It also
provides assurance regarding the effectiveness and efficiency of risk responses and related
control activities. The bank conducts bank-wide IT and IS risk assessments at least once a
year.

The IT Steering Committee ensures proper IT governance covering bank-wide IT structure,
processes, and operations and assumes primary responsibility for oversight of IT performance.
The ITSC committee regularly reports to the Board of Directors on the status of major IT
projects, results of IT/IS risk assessments, and any IS/cyber security issues.

IT AND INFORMATION SECURITY (IS) RISK



Risk of loss arising from probable midstream changes in the regulatory regime affecting
current position and/or strategy

Risk of loss resulting from failure to comply with laws, regulations, rules, related self-
regulatory organization standards, and codes of conduct applicable to its banking
activities

The Compliance Division is the primary risk owner of Regulatory and Compliance Risks. The
Chief Compliance Officer reports directly to the board-level Audit and Compliance Committee
and directly to the Board of Directors.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK
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REGULATORY AND COMPLIANCE RISK

Risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems
or from external events

Risk of loss resulting from the involvement in money laundering and terrorist financing
activities. The Office of Primary Responsibility (OPR) is the AML Unit.

Risk of loss resulting from the prospective inability to resume operations in the event of
a disaster

After conducting Business Impact Analysis, the bank has identified IT operations as one of the
primary risk drivers for business continuity risk. This is because IT has the greatest impact on
the Bank’s ability to resume operations. The ITSC, therefore, provides guidance in the
continuous development of the Business Continuity Plan - a plan used by the bank to respond
to the disruption of critical business processes and provides a contingency plan for the
restoration of critical systems.

MONEY LAUNDERING/TERRORIST FINANCING RISK

BUSINESS CONTINUITY RISK

Risk of loss resulting from uncertainty of legal proceedings that we are currently or
expected to be involved in

The Legal Division is the office of primary responsibility as the risk owner of Legal Risk.
Meanwhile, the Executive Committee and the Board provide oversight.

LEGAL  RISK
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Risk of loss arising from adverse business decisions or lack of responsiveness to
industry changes

Strategy management involves cycling through three high-level processes: strategy
formulation, strategy execution, and strategy learning that cycles back into strategy
formulation. The Office of Strategic Management has primary responsibility for most of these
individual processes.

In total, the OSM is responsible for nine cross-functional processes. Of these, there are five
core or critical processes that are inherent in the OSM. The remaining four processes are in
the natural domain of other functions. Therefore, in such cases, the OSM plays a coordinating
role, making certain that these processes are tightly integrated with the overall corporate
strategy.

STRATEGIC RISK

Core Processes

Balanced Scorecard Management, Organizational Alignment, Strategy Reviews, Strategic
Planning, Strategy Communication

Integrative Processes

OSM’s other major role is to ensure the alignment of these critical processes with the
strategy. Meanwhile, existing Cantilan Bank divisions and departments still retain their
primary responsibility and accountability for the following processes: Planning/Budgeting,
Initiative Management, Workforce Alignment, and Best Practice Sharing.

The OSM reports regularly to the Board. The Executive Committee and the Board provide
overall guidance and supervision for Strategic Risk management.

Risk of loss arising from negative public opinion

The ExeCom is the primary risk owner of reputation risk and reports to the Board.

REPUTATION RISK

Cantilan Bank has a 5-year capital development plan for the years 2020 to 2024. Both senior
management and the Board of Directors are involved in capital planning. Senior management
reviews all capital planning activities and informs the board of any changes in the plan. On the
other hand, the Board of Directors led by the Chairman and Chief Strategy Officer, expresses
the bank’s risk appetite and aims to strike a balance between reinvesting capital and providing
returns to the stockholders. CANBNK’s capital development plan is divided into four
processes: 1. Identifying and evaluating risks; 2. Setting and assessing capital adequacy
goals that relate to risk; 3. Maintaining a strategy to ensure capital adequacy and contingency
planning; and 4. Capital adequacy assessments

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 



Risk appetite is the amount of risk the bank is willing to take in pursuit of its strategic
objectives. It reflects the Bank’s capacity to sustain losses and continue to meet its
obligations under normal as well as adverse circumstances. Cantilan Bank’s risk appetite
statements are approved by the Board and form the basis for establishing risk management
policies and risk thresholds. Evaluation and setting of the bank’s risk appetite statements are
usually conducted in the annual operational and strategic planning and midyear review.

1. Credit Risk: Potential losses arising from the failure of borrowers to meet their
obligations. Risk appetite: Cantilan Bank provides for provision for credit loss; however, our
risk appetite seeks to optimize a higher level of return whilst achieving appropriate risk
versus reward performance.

2. Data Security Risk: Financial loss and reputational damage due to a breach of data or
technology disruption caused by an internal/external attack. Risk appetite: Cantilan Bank has
no tolerance for the loss of, or otherwise authorized or accidental disclosure of, customer or
other sensitive information.

3. Technology Risk: Unscheduled system downtime impacts our service to clients causing
reputational damage and financial loss. Risk appetite: Cantilan Bank has a very low
tolerance for risks that compromise our ability to process client transactions.
 
4. Legal and Regulatory Risk: Failure to adhere to legal, regulatory, and financial
requirements leads to financial and reputational damage. Risk appetite: Cantilan Bank will
obey the spirit and the letter of the laws and regulations that apply to us.

5. Liquidity Risk: Failure to meet short-term financial demands. This usually occurs due to
the inability to convert a hard asset to cash without a loss of capital and/or income in the
process. Risk appetite: Cantilan Bank is not willing to accept risks that compromise our
ability to serve our clients.

6. Operational Risk: The possibility of loss resulting from inadequate or failed procedures,
systems, or policies. Risk appetite: Cantilan Bank has a low appetite for operational risk. The
Bank makes resources available to control operational risks to acceptable levels.

The Bank monitors risk levels for all identified and emerging risks to ensure timely review of
risk positions and exceptions. Reports are prepared in a regular, timely, accurate and
informative manner and distributed to the risk-taking units and an appropriate oversight body
to ensure timely and decisive management action.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK
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RISK APPETITE STATEMENTS OF CANTILAN BANK



Banks, as gatekeepers of the financial system, hold a higher level of responsibility to prevent
financial crime. Cantilan Bank continues to regularly update its Money Laundering/Terrorist
Financing Prevention Program (MTPP) to align with relevant regulations (including BSP Circular
1022) regarding the protection and preservation of the confidentiality of bank accounts and to
ensure that the bank will not be used as a money-laundering site and channel for proceeds of
unlawful activities.

CANBNK has a full-time Anti-Money Laundering (AML) Officer in compliance with the plans and
programs of the Compliance Division to help oversee internal anti-money laundering policies
and remain compliant with relevant regulations and proactively monitor transactions in order to
prevent money laundering activities.

The Bank has its core components on achieving the AML Risk Rating:

a.      Board and Senior Management Oversight
b.      Money Laundering Prevention Program (MTPP)
c.      Internal Control and Audit
d.      Implementation

The Bank has a board-level committee Audit and Compliance Committee (ACC) tasked with
assisting the Board of Directors in fulfilling its oversight responsibility for the Bank’s AML
Compliance Management to make sure that the Bank complies with the provisions of the AMLA,
as amended, its Revised Implementing Rules and Regulations.

The Senior Management provides full access and cooperation when compliance testing is being
performed on AML and adequate resources to enable it to effectively discharge its functions.
The Management also provided full cooperation when investigations into covered and
suspicious transactions occur. 

The recently issued Circular 1022 will help the bank in adopting a comprehensive and risk-
based money laundering/terrorism financing prevention program (MTPP) designed to promote
professional standards and prevention of the covered person from being used, intentionally or
unintentionally for money laundering and terrorist financing activities.

The Bank designed a program based on Circular 1022 to manage and mitigate the risks that
have been identified in the risk assessment. This program takes additional measures for those
classified as posing higher risks.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK
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The AML office takes responsibility for ensuring the full implementation of AML programs that
are geared toward sound banking practices. AML testing and internal audits are conducted
quarterly at the branches to eliminate AML-related risks.

In addition, the AML Officer provides monthly reports and updates to ACC and the Board of
Directors that includes the covered and suspicious transactions reported, the result of
compliance AML Testing on newly opened accounts, high-risk accounts, and CTRs with the
recommendations on how to address the deficiencies found during the AML Testing, the target
achieved based on plans and programs, and any latest circulars related to AML.

The role of Internal Control and Audit in the bank is to provide independent assurance that an
organization’s risk management, governance, and internal processes are operating effectively.
This is also to ensure compliance with any and all relevant laws and regulations. Furthermore, it
facilitates the dissemination of information to employees and officers and ensures consistency
in AML testing and audits.

The Bank is compliant with the Digitalization of Customer Records (DIGICUR) policy issued by
AMLC Regulatory Issuance A, B, and C, No.2, Series of 2018. In January 2019, Cantilan Bank
successfully migrated all customer records from the previous on-premise core-banking system
to the new core banking system- Instafin.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK
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DIGITIZATION OF CUSTOMER RECORDS



Strong corporate governance is the foundation of safe and sound banking operations. It embodies
the principles of fairness, accountability and transparency; hence, it promotes the protection of the
rights of all stakeholders. This is critical particularly in the banking industry, where public trust is
paramount to sustain resiliency.

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The election of the board of directors of Cantilan Bank, Inc. is governed by the ELECTION CODE as
further amended in the BOD (Resolution No. 17-013 on January 30, 2017). The voting was conducted
during the Annual Stockholders' Meeting on June 8, 2021.

The Board of Directors of the Bank shall create and select an independent Electoral Board consisting of
five (5) members for a fixed tenure of three (3) years to oversee the election. The members of the
Electoral Board are selected from among the stockholders of the Bank who are neither members of the
Board of Directors nor employees of the Bank. They have been selected with proven competence and
integrity.

The elections are held in the afternoon of the regular annual stockholders meeting as part of the meeting’s
agenda. There shall be elected seven (7) directors: five (5) regular directors and two (2) independent
directors, whose term of office shall be in accordance with the By-Laws of the Bank. This code establishes
minimum qualifications and disqualifications for regular and independent directors, including, but not
limited to, the fit and proper rule, which includes Integrity/Probity, Competence, Education, Diligence, and
Experience/Training.

Nominations of candidates for regular directors and independent directors shall be filed in writing by filling
out the Nomination Form for each specific director. On the fifteenth day (15) prior to the election, the
Corporate Governance Committee and the Nomination Committee shall meet to decide on the
qualifications and disqualifications of the Regular Directors and Independent Directors.
Stockholders or proxy holders who are qualified to vote shall fill in their respective ballots for the regular
and independent directors. The canvassing process mentioned above applies to both regular and
independent directors.

BOARD'S OVERALL RESPONSIBILITY

The Board has overall responsibility for the Bank, including approving and overseeing the implementation
of the Bank’s strategic objectives, risk strategy, corporate governance, and corporate values. In addition,
the Board is responsible for providing oversight of senior management.

The Board holds regular meetings monthly in accordance with its By-Laws and convenes for special
meetings when required by business necessities.

For their continuing education, the Board attends seminars and training. A self-assessment of their
performance and effectiveness as a body is conducted including the peer evaluation of the individual
directors.

General responsibility of the Board of Directors

The position of a Bank director is a position of trust. A director assumes certain responsibilities to
different constituencies or stakeholders, i.e., the bank itself, its stockholders, its depositors, and other
creditors, its management and employees, the regulators, the deposit insurer, and the public at large.
These constituencies or stakeholders have the right to expect that the institution is being run in a
prudent and sound manner. The board of directors is primarily responsible for approving and
overseeing the implementation of the bank’s strategic objectives, risk strategy, corporate
governance, and corporate values. Further, the board of directors is also responsible for monitoring
and overseeing the performance of senior management as the latter manages the day-to-day affairs
of the institution.

PAGE 32 |  ANNUAL REPORT 2021 www.can t i l anbank .com

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The general responsibility of the Board of Directors
 
1) To approve and monitor the implementation of strategic objectives.
 
2) To approve and oversee the implementation of policies governing major areas of
banking operations.
 
3) To approve and oversee the implementation of r isk management policies.
 
4) To oversee the selection and performance of senior management.
 
5) To consistently conduct the affairs of the institution with a high degree of integrity.
 
6) To define appropriate governance policies and practices for the bank and for i ts own
work and to establish means to ensure that such are fol lowed and periodically reviewed
for ongoing improvement.
 
7) To constitute committees to increase eff iciency and allow deeper focus in specif ic
areas. The board of directors shall create committees, the number and nature of which
would depend on the size of the bank and the board, the complexity of operations, long-
term strategies, and the risk tolerance level of the bank.
 
8) To effectively uti l ize the work conducted by the internal audit, r isk management and
compliance functions and the external auditors. The board of directors shall recognize
and acknowledge the importance of the assessment of the independent, competent and
qualif ied internal and external auditors as well as the risk and compliance off icers in
ensuring the safety and soundness of the operations of a bank on a going-concern basis
and communicate the same throughout the bank.

SEPARATE ROLES OF THE CHAIRPERSON & THE CEO

There is a delineation of function between the Chairman of the Board and the President or the
Chief Executive Officer. The duties and responsibilities of the Cantilan Bank Chairman and the
President are separate to ensure an appropriate balance of power, increased accountability, and
better capacity for decision-making by the Board.

The Chairman of the Board shall provide leadership in the Board. He is mainly responsible for the
proper governance of Cantilan Bank, Inc. through the Board of Directors. The Chairman is likewise
responsible for the efficient functioning of the Board including maintaining a relationship of trust
with the members of the Board. The Chairman ensures that the monthly meetings of the Board and
the annual stockholders’ general assembly are held in accordance with the by-laws. The Chairman
also ensures that there is quality, timely lines of communication and flow of information between
the Board and Management.

The President is in charge of and exercises general responsibility for the management and ensures
compliance with laws and regulations of the BSP and other regulatory agencies. He also maintains
relations with the Rural Bankers Association of the Philippines and other industry associations. He
ensures that the business and affairs of Cantilan Bank, Inc. are managed in a sound and prudent
manner. He also ensures that operational, financial, and internal controls are adequate and
effective. This is to ensure the reliability and integrity of financial and operational information,
effectiveness and efficiency of operation, safeguarding of assets, and compliance with laws, rules,
regulations, and contracts.

The President provides leadership for management in developing and implementing business
strategies, plans and budgets to the extent approved by the Board. He provides the Board with a
balanced and understandable account of the Bank’s performance, financial condition, and results of
operations.
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HOTCHKISS, WILLIAM III K. 

HOTCHKISS, MA. TERESA P.

JULVE, BERNARDINO B.

HOTCHKISS, CHARLES Y. 

YAP, DESERREE A.

HOTCHKISS, TANYA P.

ZAYAS, JEANETTE P.

NAME OF DIRECTOR
TYPE OF

DIRECTORSHIP

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Non-executive directors shall refer to those who are not part of the day-to-day management of
operations and shall include the independent directors. However, not all non-executive directors are
considered independent directors. In 2021, the Bank had 2 Executive Directors.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

With a sufficient number of independent directors, the Board is assured of independent perspectives
and viewpoints. Currently, the Bank has 2 independent directors. Both are active in various
committees of the Bank and participate extensively in Board discussions.

On an annual basis, the Corporate Governance Committee reviews and evaluates the qualifications of
a person nominated to the Board as an independent director. It determines that he meets all of the
qualifications and possesses none of the disqualifications of an independent director under relevant
laws and regulations. The attributes of an independent director include independence from
management or from any business or relationship which could or could reasonably be perceived to
materially interfere with the exercise of unbiased judgment, and the lack of relationship to the
corporation, its related companies, or substantial shareholder as a regular director or officer or
relative of the same, as an executive or professional adviser within the last 5 years, or business
relations other than arm’s length, immaterial or insignificant transactions.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The corporate powers of the Bank are exercised, its business is conducted, and all its properties are
controlled and held by the Board of Directors, composed of members elected by the stockholders.
There are seven (7) directors, two (2) of whom are independent. All seven (7) directors are known for
their independence, professionalism, and integrity. There are five (5) non-executive directors and two
(2) executive directors who are concurrently President and Executive Vice President of the Bank.

BOARD QUALIFICATIONS
The board member must be fit and proper for the position of director. In determining whether a person
is fit and proper for the position of a director, the following matters must be considered:
integrity/probity, physical/mental fitness; relevant education/financial literacy/training; possession of
competencies relevant to the job, such as knowledge and experience, skills, diligence and
independence of mind; and sufficiency of time to fully carry out responsibilities.

In assessing a director's integrity/probity, consideration shall be given to the director's market
reputation, observed conduct and behavior, as well as his ability to continuously comply with
company policies and applicable laws and regulations, including market conduct rules, and the
relevant requirements and standards of any regulatory body, professional body, clearinghouse or
exchange, or government and any of its instrumentalities/agencies. An elected director has the
burden to prove that he possesses all the foregoing minimum qualifications and none of the cases
mentioned under MORB Section 132.
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NO. OF YEARS 
AS DIRECTOR NO. OF SHARES PERCENTAGE OF

SHARES

Regular Director
 

Regular Director
 

Independent
Director

 
Regular Director

 
Regular Director

 
Regular Director

 
Independent

Director

24
 

7
 

4
 
 

17
 

3
 

6
 

11

83809.31
 

68897.55
 

2440.39
 
 

19596.49
 

4252.05
 

13380.33
 

1027.29

15.1752%
 

12.4752%
 

0.4419%
 
 

3.5483%
 

0.7699%
 

2.4228%
 
 

0.1860%
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Lt. Gen. William K. Hotchkiss III (Ret.) has served as Cantilan Bank
Chairman since 1999. He received his Bachelor of Science in
Aviation degree at the Philippine State College of Aeronautics in
1970 and earned his Master’s degree in Education at the University
of the Philippines in 1978. He completed the General Staff Course at
Escuela Superior del Aire, in Madrid, Spain in 1982. He also
completed the International Fellows Program at the National Defense
University, Washington, D.C. in 1991. In 2017, Lt. Gen. Hotchkiss
was inducted into the International Hall of Fame at the National
Defense University in Washington, D.C. for his leadership roles in
Philippine Aviation and Defense.

He served as the country’s 24th Philippine Air Force Commanding
General (1996-1999), as Director-General of the Civil Aviation
Authority of the Philippines (2012-2016), as Trustee of the Armed
Forces of the Philippines (AFP) RSBS (1996-1999) & the AFP Mutual
Benefit Association, Inc. (1993-1994), as President of the Philippine
Eagle Foundation (2005-2012), as Chairman/President of the Rural
Bankers’ Association of the Philippines (2005-2006) and the Rural
Bankers Research & Development Foundation (2006-2008).

Atty. Bernardino B. Julve has been a member of the Cantilan Bank
board since April 2019. He earned his Bachelor of Arts and
Sciences degree in History at the University of San Carlos - Cebu in
1973 and a Bachelor of Laws degree at the University of the
Philippines - Diliman in 1977. In 1998, he completed his Master’s
degree in National Security Administration at the National Defense
College of the Philippines. Before joining Cantilan Bank, he held
various government positions at the Department of Labor and
Employment: Assistant Regional Director – Region 4 (1987-1989),
Assistant Director/Regional Director – Region 7 (1989-1990),
Regional Director - NCR (1990-1993), Assistant Secretary (1993-
2000), and Labor Attache (2000-2015).

He was also a Commissioner at the National Labor Relations
Commission (2015-2017). He was the managing partner of Julve,
Tajano & Guerson Law Offices (1984-1987) and practicing lawyer of
Alentaja, Ricasa & Velarde Law Offices (1982-1984).
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
LT GEN WILLIAM K HOTCHKISS I I I  (RET)
CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD

ATTY. BERNARDINO B.  JULVE
VICE CHAIRMAN/INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

FILIPINO,  78 

FILIPINO,  69 



Brig. Gen. Charles Y. Hotchkiss (Ret.) has served as Cantilan Bank’s
President since 2014. He earned his Bachelor of Arts in Mathematics degree
at Colegio de San Jose Recoletos. He completed his Command and Staff
Course in 1991 at the Royal Australian Air Force Staff College. He also
completed his Joint Command and Staff Course in 2000 at the Armed Forces
Joint Command and Staff College.

He joined the Philippine Air Force (PAF) in 1980 as Squadron Commander
and retired as a Wing Commander. While with the PAF, he became the
Chairman of the Audit, Credit & Election Committee of ACES Credit
Cooperative Development (1983-1999) and the Chairman of the Supervisory
& Audit Committee of ACDI Multipurpose Cooperative (1989-1994). He joined
Cantilan Bank in 2005 as a Member of the Board and assumed the position of
Executive Vice President from 2008 to 2014.

Maria Teresa Paloma - Hotchkiss first served as a regular board member of
Cantilan Bank’s in 2004. She was elected as a regular director again in 2018
and since then has been a member of the Credit Committee and Bids &
Awards Committee. She graduated from Saint Theresa’s College of Cebu with
a Bachelor of Science degree in Commerce in 1977. Before joining the Bank,
she was a Managing Director of Country Wide Lending Center (1993-1997)
and a Senior Adviser of the Philippine Air Force Officers’ Ladies’ Club (1996-
1999). She also worked as an Administrative Assistant for the National
Security Council of the Philippines (1986-1989) and as Executive Assistant at
Riggs National Bank of Washington D.C. (1991-1992). Presently, she is the
Chief Financial Officer at Hotchkiss Learning Center and a Managing Director
at Nova Manufacturing & Trading, Inc.

Tanya P. Hotchkiss has served as Cantilan Bank’s Executive Vice President
since 2016. She joined the Bank in 2012 as Head of Strategic Management
and became a member of the board from 2015 to 2016 and was re-elected in
2020. She graduated cum laude from the University of the Philippines -
Diliman with a bachelor’s degree in Business Administration and earned her
Master’s degree in Development, Innovation and Change from the University
of Bologna in Italy in 2011. For her outstanding work in the international
development community, she received the Devex 40 Under 40 award in 2013
in Manila. In 2016, she completed the HBS-Accion executive program on
Strategic Leadership in Inclusive Finance at the Harvard Business School.
She also served as Executive Director of the Hotchkiss Foundation
overseeing its island ecology conservation work.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BRIG GEN CHARLES Y HOTCHKISS (RET)
DIRECTOR/PRESIDENT

MARIA TERESA P.  HOTCHKISS
DIRECTOR

TANYA P.  HOTCHKISS
DIRECTOR/EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT

FILIPINO,  72 

FILIPINO,  66 

FILIPINO,  41  



Dr. Deserree A. Yap joined Cantilan Bank in June 2020 as a director. She
finished her Bachelor of Science degree in Medical Technology at Velez
College in 1995. She then studied medicine at the Cebu Institute of Medicine
which she completed in 1999. She completed her post-graduate internship
and Residency Training in Pediatrics at Chong Hua Hospital. She passed the
Physician Licensure Examination in 2000.

She also worked as a school physician at CIT-U-Medical-Dental Clinic (2008-
2016) and as a Pediatric Resident at Chong Hua Hospital (2001-2003). She is
currently employed by Chong Hua Hospital as a Pediatrician and Fellow of
the Philippine Pediatric Society (FPPS). She also is a visiting medical staff at
various medical centers and hospitals in Cebu.

After having served Cantilan Bank as a Member of the Board from 2006 to
2008, she joined again as a director in 2015. She finished her studies at the
University of Santo Tomas in 1997 with a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Communication. She was a Municipal Councilor of the municipality of
Cantilan from 2007 to 2013. She worked as a Sales Training Supervisor at
Sara Lee, Philippines (2003-2004) and as a Sales & Marketing Officer at
Home Credit Mutual Bldg., & Loan Association (1998-1999).
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DR. DESERREE ARREZA – YAP, FPPS
DIRECTOR

JEANETTE PALANG -  ZAYAS
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

FILIPINO,  47 

FILIPINO,  45 
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Composed of at least three (3) members, two (2) of whom shall be members of the Board including the
Chairman, and another one a bank officer (ex-officio). The committee approves the loan applications from
a maximum total sum of P2,000,000 to P5 Million per individual borrower; recommends to the Board of
Directors loans for write-off; and evaluates the Bank's credit risk exposure.

Composed of at least one (1) non-executive director, IT Head, Information Security Officer, and six (6) user
department representatives and is headed by the Executive Vice President. The committee is responsible
for ensuring proper IT governance covering bank-wide IT structure, processes, and operations.

CHAIRMAN:
Tanya P. Hotchkiss -EVP/CTO

MEMBERS:
Jeanette Y. Palang-Zayas - Ind. Director
Sheryl G. Asio - FMD Head                                  
Archie T. Miranda - IT Head                                     Rico C. Guerta - BBD Head
Rose Florence V. Estrada - ISO Head                 Rebecca A. Ravelo - Accounting Head
                                

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
B O A R D - L E V E L  C O M M I T T E E S
The Board has delegated responsibilities to the different committees as follows:

I.CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
Composed of at least four members of the Board, two (2) of whom shall be independent directors,
including the chairman. The committee is responsible for ensuring the Board’s effectiveness and due
observance of corporate governance principles and guidelines.

CHAIRMAN:
Atty. Bernardino B. Julve - Independent Director
MEMBERS:
Jeanette Y. Palang-Zayas - Independent Director
Ma. Teresa P. Hotchkiss - Director
Dra. Deserree A. Yap - Director

I I . A U D I T  &  C O M P L I A N C E  C O M M I T T E E
Composed of at least three (3) members of the Board, two (2) of whom shall be independent directors,
including the chairman, and another one with audit experience. The committee is responsible for providing
oversight over the Bank’s audit functions.

CHAIRMAN:
Jeanette Y. Palang-Zayas - Independent Director
MEMBERS:
Atty. Bernardino B. Julve - Independent Director
Dra. Deserre A. Yap - Director

I I I . C R E D I T  C O M M I T T E E

CHAIRMAN:
Brig. Gen. Charles Y. Hotchkiss (Ret) - Director/President
MEMBERS:
Ma. Teresa P. Hotchkiss - Director
Albino A. Duero - Head, Credit & Loans Division

I V .  I T  S T E E R I N G  C O M M I T T E E
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Composed of senior officers of the Bank, the Committee has the following duties and functions:
1) Selects employees for promotion to key positions – Branch Heads, Department Heads, Division Heads;
2) Manages personnel retirement fund;
3) Reviews and updates HR Manuals;
4) Reviews and updates salary standards
5) Reviews and updates organizational structures
6) Sets up, reviews and updates rewards and incentive systems, allowances and benefits given to employees
7) Reviews and updates the Performance Evaluation System
8) Monitors and supervises Career Development Plan

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
M A N A G E M E N T - L E V E L  C O M M I T T E E S
The Board has delegated responsibilities to the different committees as follows:

I.EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (EXECOM)
Composed of Chairman of the Board and Senior Management, the EXECOM is primarily
responsible for the decisions on operational and administrative matters and deliberate on
policies for recommendation to the Board.

CHAIRMAN:
Lt. Gen. William K. Hotchkiss III - Chairman of the Board
MEMBERS:
Brig. Gen. Charles Y. Hotchkiss - President
Tanya P Hotchkiss - Executive Vice President

I I . A S S E T  A N D  L I A B I L I T Y  C O M M I T T E E  ( A L C O )
Composed of senior officers of the Bank, the ALCO has been established to provide the
framework to strategically manage CBI’s overall assets and liabilities. This is for the long term
and short term. It shall specifically oversee the asset/liability position, liquidity, and funds
management, and investment portfolio functions of the Bank.

I I I . P E R S O N N E L  M A N A G E M E N T  B O A R D

CHAIRMAN:
Tanya P. Hotchkiss -EVP/CTO

MEMBERS:
Sheryl G. Asio - FMD Head                                  Rico C. Guerta - BBD Head
Albino A. Duero - CLD Head                                Rebecca A. Ravelo - Accounting Head 
Archie T. Miranda - IT Head                                Joan Walter F. Plaza - OIC of Legal Div.
Colleen Mary C. Barrot - Compliance Officer    

CHAIRMAN:
Tanya P. Hotchkiss -EVP/CTO

MEMBERS:
Grace Naumi A. Lim - HRD Head                                  
Ly-Ann Mary U. Loren - HR Dept. Head                                
Helen Grace B. Ibarra - CLD Admin Dept. Head                                     
Andrea V. Cale - HR Admin    
Rico C. Guerta - BBD Head                               
Rebecca A. Ravelo - Accounting Head
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

M A N A G E M E N T - L E V E L  C O M M I T T E E S

IV.CREDIT COMMITTEE (CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS LEVEL)
Composed of at least three (3) senior officers, the Committee approves loan applications from a
maximum total sum of P801,000 to P2M per individual borrower with the final approval from the
President; recommends to the Credit Committee loans for write-off and evaluates the Bank's
credit risk exposure.

CHAIRMAN:
Rico C. Guerta - Head-Branch Banking Division
MEMBERS:
Dindo Junnifer A. Arones - Product Head-Salary Loans
Albino A. Duero - Head-Credit and Loans Division

HOTCHKISS, WILLIAM K. III

JULVE, BERNARDINO B.

HOTCHKISS, TANYA P.

HOTCHKISS, CHARLES Y.

HOTCHKISS, MA. TERESA P.

YAP, DESERREE A.

ZAYAS, JEANETTE P.

16
 

16
 

16
 

16
 

16
 

16
 

16

MEETINGS & QUORUM REQUIREMENT
 
The Board schedules and holds regular meetings monthly under its by-laws and convenes for
special meetings when required by business exigencies. The directors are furnished with the
notice, agenda and other relevant meeting materials before each meeting, which meeting is duly
minuted.

For the period January to December 2021, attendance at the board and board committee
meetings is as follows:

NAME OF DIRECTOR
NO. OF 

MEETINGS
AUDIT &

COMPLIANCE
COMMITTEE

CREDIT
COMMITTEE

IT STEERING
COMMITTEE

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

COMMITTEE

100%
 

100%
 

100%
 

100%
 

100%
 

100%
 

100%

n/a
 

n/a
 

n/a
 

12
 

12
 

n/a
 

n/a

n/a
 

n/a
 

n/a
 

100%
 

100%
 

n/a
 

n/a

n/a
 

12
 

n/a
 

n/a
 

n/a
 

12
 

12

n/a
 

100%
 

n/a
 

n/a
 

n/a
 

100%
 

100%

n/a
 

12
 

n/a
 

n/a
 

12
 

12
 

12

n/a
 

100%
 

n/a
 

n/a
 

n/a
 

100%
 

100%

n/a
 

n/a
 

12
 

n/a
 

n/a
 

n/a
 

11

n/a
 

n/a
 

100%
 

n/a
 

n/a
 

n/a
 

92%

TOTAL NO. OF MEETINGS HELD 16 100% 12 100% 12 100% 12 100% 12 100%



Brig. Gen. Charles Y. Hotchkiss (Ret.) has served as Cantilan
Bank’s President since 2014. He earned his Bachelor of Arts
in Mathematics degree at Colegio de San Jose Recoletos. He
completed his Command and Staff Course in 1991 at the
Royal Australian Air Force Staff College. He also completed
his Joint Command and Staff Course in 2000 at the Armed
Forces Joint Command and Staff College.

He joined the Philippine Air Force (PAF) in 1980 as Squadron
Commander and retired as a Wing Commander. While with
the PAF, he became the Chairman of the Audit, Credit &
Election Committee of ACES Credit Cooperative
Development (1983-1999) and the Chairman of the
Supervisory & Audit Committee of ACDI Multipurpose
Cooperative (1989-1994). He joined Cantilan Bank in 2005 as
a Member of the Board and assumed the position of
Executive Vice President from 2008 to 2014.

Selection Process of the Senior Management

The President and the Executive Vice President positions are for annual appointment by the
Board of Directors. The selection process includes nomination, review of qualifications and
screening, short-listing of candidates, and voting. Candidates should be fit and proper for the
position they are nominated for. At the minimum, candidates are screened based on
integrity/probity, education/training, work experiences, accomplishments and competencies
relevant to the functions of the President and EVP such as their knowledge, skills and diligence.

Tanya P. Hotchkiss has served as Cantilan Bank’s Executive
Vice President since 2016. She joined the Bank in 2012 as
Head of Strategic Management and became a member of the
board from 2015 to 2016 and was re-elected in 2020. She
graduated cum laude from the University of the Philippines -
Diliman with a bachelor’s degree in Business Administration
and earned her Master’s degree in Development, Innovation
and Change from the University of Bologna in Italy in 2011.
For her outstanding work in the international development
community, she received the Devex 40 Under 40 award in
2013 in Manila. In 2016, she completed the HBS-Accion
executive program on Strategic Leadership in Inclusive
Finance at the Harvard Business School. She also served as
Executive Director of the Hotchkiss Foundation’s island
ecology conservation work.

THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BRIG GEN CHARLES Y HOTCHKISS (RET),
PRESIDENT
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TANYA P. HOTCHKISS
EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT
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SECURED LOANS  DEPARTMENT HEAD 

CONSTRUCTION AND ENGINEERING SERVICES DEPARTMENT HEAD /
OIC OF LOGISTICS DIVISION

HR ADMINISTRATION DEPARTMENT HEAD 

POST CREDIT REVIEW DEPARTMENT HEAD 

SPECIAL & GENERAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT HEAD 

CLD ADMINISTRATION DEPARTMENT HEAD  

OPERATIONS ADMINISTRATION DEPARTMENT HEAD  

DEPARTMENT HEAD (EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT) / HEAD OF SUPPORT
SERVICES DEPARTMENT

BUDGET OFFICER

ASSISTANT SECURITY OFFICER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICER 

CENTRAL CIBI DEPARTMENT HEAD

HR DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT HEAD

MARKETING DEPARTMENT HEAD 

GENERAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT HEAD & HEAD ADMINISTRATOR OF
TRAINING CENTER

LITIGATION DEPARTMENT HEAD /OIC OF LEGAL DIVISION

OPERATIONAL TRAINING DEPARTMENT HEAD

CASH MANAGEMENT  DEPARTMENT HEAD 

DEPOSIT,REMITTANCES AND OTHER SERVICES DEPARTMENT HEAD

ATM DEPARTMENT HEAD 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS & SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIVISION HEADS

DEPARTMENT HEADS/PRODUCT HEADS

NAME POSITION

LT. GEN. HOTCHKISS, WILLIAM K. III (RET.)

BRIG. GEN. HOTCHKISS, CHARLES Y. (RET.)

HOTCHKISS, TANYA P.

CHAIRMAN

PRESIDENT/CHIEF SECURITY OFFICER

EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT/CSG HEAD/CHIEF TECHNOLOGY OFFICER

BARROT, COLLEEN MARY C.

DUERO, ALBINO B.

RAVELO, REBECCA A.

LIM, GRACE NAUMI A.

ASIO, SHERYL G.

GUERTA, RICO C.

MIRANDA, ARCHIE T.

MONTEROSO, ALAN B.

ESTRADA, ROSE FLORENCE V.

CATUBURAN, BONIE LYN E.

TRUGILLO, REMYBERT C.

CHIEF COMPLIANCE OFFICER

CREDIT & LOANS DIVISION HEAD

ACCOUNTING DIVISION HEAD

HUMAN RESOURCE DIVISION HEAD

HEAD, FUND MANAGEMENT DIVISION

BRANCH BANKING DIVISION HEAD

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DIVISION HEAD

DIGITAL  CHANNELS DIVISION HEAD-ACTING

ISO Division Head - Acting

Internal Audit Division Head - Acting

Credit Risk Management Division Head - Acting

ARONES, DINDO JUNNIFER A.

SUAREZ, JOEL J.

CALE, ANDREA V.

CANDA, REY A.

TUMALON, HAZEL T.

IBARRA, HELEN GRACE B.

COCA, MARISSA L

GUIRAL, JOLLYWINCH T.

CUARTERO, MAY L.

LUMAPAS, MARK BRYAN R.

DELA PEÑA, NOREEN A.

CAGALITAN, ALGEIR G.

LOREN, LY-ANN MARY U.

DUERO, EMMARY A.

KINDICA, PAMELA A.

PLAZA, JOAN WALTER F.

CATUBURAN, AL D.

APILAT, ROBERTA D.

URQUIA, LILIBETH B.

AMBRAY, BIENVINIDO III P.

NAME POSITION

NAME POSITION
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POSITION
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BRANCH HEADS

i l b k

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

IT AUDIT DEPARTMENT HEAD ACTING

DATABASE ADMIN. DEPARTMENT HEAD ACTING

COLLECTION & REMEDIAL MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT HEAD

REGULAR LOANS DEPARTMENT HEAD

CENTRAL APPRAISER DEPARTMENT HEAD

CONSOLIDATION DEPARTMENT HEAD - ACTING

MICROFINANCE DEPARTMENT HEAD - ACTING

DEPARTMENT HEADS/PRODUCT HEADS

BALSICAS, SARAH KRISTINA B.

DUERO, JOHN REY R.

ANUNCIO, JOCINE S.

PAMA, ARIEL P.

LIM, CARY A.

SULLANO, ARLYN O.

NOJARA, IGNACIO R.

NAME POSITION

BRANCH HEAD 

BRANCH HEAD 

BRANCH HEAD 

BRANCH HEAD 

BRANCH HEAD 

BRANCH HEAD - ACTING

BRANCH HEAD 

BRANCH HEAD 

BRANCH HEAD 

BRANCH HEAD 

BRANCH HEAD 

BRANCH HEAD 

BRANCH HEAD 

BRANCH HEAD - ACTING

BRANCH HEAD 

BRANCH HEAD - ACTING

BRANCH HEAD 

BRANCH HEAD 

BRANCH HEAD - ACTING

BRANCH HEAD 

BRANCH HEAD 

BRANCH HEAD 

BRANCH HEAD 

TABILE, JULIA S.

ARIATE, AJI AGUSTIN L.

ACEVEDO, JAY S.

CORTES, DENNIS M.

QUIÑONEZ, NEILBRIAN D.

ZABALA, JASON S.

GENDEVE, VICENTE C.

TUBIA, RUEN A.

CUIZON, RONNIEL B.

NALDOZA, AMIEL W.

MASONGSONG, MICHAEL C.

GALO, LORNA J.

DATOON, MARY ANN S.

ALGUZAR, REY JAN V.

GELI, CLARISSA C.

VILLASANTA, ANNIE MAY S.

COSMIANO, ROMEL M.

IDEA, RONALD M.

TARTAR, CHEYEN B.

DAMASCO, PEPITO JR. D.

NAVARRO, RONIEL E.

CALIJAN, RANDOLPH RAY B.

PELIGRO, HERBERT M.

NAME POSITION
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CANBNK invests reasonably in the continuing education of its employees, especially its Officers, Senior
Management, and Board of Directors. The continuing education program for Senior Management and Board of
Directors includes but is not limited to attendance in external training, symposiums, forums, educational tours, and
round table discussions; and active affiliations and participation with organizations in the banking/financial industry.

Below is the training attended by the Board of Directors and Senior Management of Cantilan Bank for 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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TRAINING AND EDUCATION PROGRAM FOR BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS COURSE DATE OF TRAINING

LT. GEN. HOTCHKISS, WILLIAM
K. III (RET)

BOD BERNARDINO B. JULVE

BOD MARIA TERESA P.
HOTCHKISS

BOD DESERREE A. YAP

BOD JEANETTE P. ZAYAS

Oradian Summit

4th BSP Webinar Series: The Age of Digital
Banking

None

Oradian Summit

4th BSP Webinar Series: The Age of Digital
Banking

4th BSP Webinar Series: The Age of Digital
Banking

None

June 9-10,2021

July 21, 2021

June 9-10,2021

July 21, 2021

July 21, 2021

SENIOR MANAGEMENT COURSE DATE OF TRAINING

BRIG. GEN. CHARLES Y.
HOTCHKISS (RET) PRESIDENT

TANYA P. HOTCHKISS,
EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT

How Fintech is Shaping the Future of
Banking via Webex Cisco App

Oradian Summit 2021

RBAP Symposium

TransUnion User Access Orientation

How Fintech is Shaping the Future of
Banking via Webex Cisco App

Financial Infrastructure Development
Network (FIND) International Conference

Pilot Launch of the QR PH for P2M

Oradian Summit 2021

Webinar on Knowledge Transfer-ECL Model
Validation

4th BSP Webinar Series: The Age of Digital
Banking

2021 MCPI Annual Conference

RBAP Symposium

TransUnion User Access Orientation

March 23, 2021

June 9-10, 2021

November 10-11, 2021

November 24, 2021

March 23, 2021

April 6-7, 2021

April 30, 2021

June 9-10,2021

July 21-22, 2021

July 21, 2021

August 18,2021

November 10-11,2021

November 24,2021
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PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT OF THE BOARD
& SENIOR MANAGEMENT
CANBNK has a framework for evaluating board effectiveness to enable directors to evaluate their performance as
well as the collective performance of the Board. The Board and director evaluation involves board members
undertaking a constructive but critical review of their performance, identifying strengths, and weaknesses, and
implementing plans for further professional development.

The members of the Board conduct an annual self-assessment of the Board as a whole, of themselves as
individual members, and as members of the Board-level Committees – Credit Committee, Audit and Compliance
Committee, IT Steering Committee, and Corporate Governance Committee. The self-assessment includes an
evaluation of the independent judgment, objectivity, and balanced perspective of each member and the Board as a
whole. Performance evaluation is conducted at least sixty (60) days before the annual stockholders’ meeting.

A separate evaluation framework is also set for senior management. In the current practice, the President’s
performance is assessed by the Board yearly while the EVP is evaluated by the President semi-annually,
consistent with that of the rest of the employees. The performance evaluation is based on the officer’s quality of
work; work competencies; work attitude; and leadership and management.

The Bank has a mechanism to consolidate and summarize the results of performance evaluation of the Board,
individual directors, the Board-level committees, and senior management to ensure that these results are
discussed and deliberated at the Corporate Governance Committee and reported to the Board of Directors.

In 2021, the result of the Performance Evaluation for the Board of Directors is as follows:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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Director 1
 

Director 2
 

Director 3
 

Director 4
 

Director 5
 

Director 6
 

Director 7

Ratee

4.6
 

4.5
 

4.7
 
5
 
5
 

4.9
 
5

Rating

Very Satisfactory - Excellent
 

Very Satisfactory - Excellent
 

Very Satisfactory - Excellent
 

Excellent
 

Excellent
 

Very Satisfactory - Excellent
 

Excellent

Description

Note: Not in particular order 

RETIREMENT AND SUCCESSION POLICY OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
On August 13, 2019, per BOD Resolution No19-194, the Board approved the Retirement Policy for the Cantilan
Bank Board of Directors. As part of the succession plan, the Board adopted a retirement policy that encouraged
dynamism and avoided the perpetuation of power. This was to ensure sustained shareholder value increases. The
retired board member will receive a retirement package of cash and shares of stocks.

For the retirement age, a Director shall remain on the Board for as long he/she is elected by the stockholders of the
Bank and continues to possess the required minimum qualifications of a director to be fit & proper. 

In 2020, two directors – Director Wencelao R. Arreza, 86 years old and Director Rolando U. Julve, 81 years old
availed of the retirement packages after working for the Bank for more than 25 years. 

For Senior Management, the mandatory retirement age of 60 does not apply to the President and the Executive
Vice President. For as long as the incumbents are fit and proper, they may be reappointed for the same position
year in and year out. Meanwhile, the Succession Policy of the Bank states that in case of vacancy, the Board of
Directors elects the President from among the Directors. For the Executive Vice President position, the Board may
appoint from within the organization or may consider hiring from the outside, when necessary.



The remuneration of the Senior Management, being part of the plantilla of the Bank, is based on the existing Salary
Structure applicable to all regular employees. This salary structure is wherein all positions are rated from Job Level
1 up to Job Level 11. The higher the position and the more significant the responsibilities are, the higher the job
level and the corresponding pay. The President is rated Job Level 11 while the Executive Vice President is rated as
Job Level 10. 

The other officials that belong to the top 4 highest remunerations are the Group Heads in Job Level 9 and the
Deputy Group Head in Job Level 8. The increment per job level is 25% while the vertical increment (step increment)
is 5% at most.

The Board of Directors receives a monthly honorarium during board and committee meetings. They also receive an
allowance and per diems during official travels, meetings, and training and conferences.

The CANBNK Code of Ethics and Business Conduct establishes the ethical standards that govern the way
CANBNK employees and Directors deal with colleagues, customers, stakeholders and the bank itself. Complying
with the code is part of the terms and conditions of our employment with CANBNK. Anyone who violates the ethical
standards of the bank may face disciplinary action, including termination of employment.

CANBNK is committed to conducting all its affairs to the highest level of ethics, integrity, honesty, fairness and
professionalism, with no exception. While achieving our business goal is critical, how we do it is equally significant.
The CANBNK Code of Ethics and Business Conduct applies to all employees and directors.

Following the regulations in Circular No. 895, Guidelines on Related Party Transactions issued by Bangko Sentral
ng Pilipinas (BSP), CANBNK recognizes the need to strengthen its policy on related party transactions and other
similar situations to prevent or mitigate abusive transactions with related parties and avoid risks of conflict of
interest. This is to ensure that every Related Party Transaction is conducted in an arm’s length transaction that will
protect the Bank from conflicts of interest that may arise between the Bank and its Related Parties; and to ensure
proper review, approval, ratification, and disclosure of transactions between the Bank and any of its Related Parties
as required in compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

The Bank’s Board of Directors appointed a Corporate Governance Committee to administer the responsibilities of an
RPT Committee. The committee shall oversee the implementation of the system for identifying, monitoring,
measuring, controlling, and reporting RPTs, including the periodic review of the RPT policies and procedures. A
master list of related parties is being established. All related party transactions shall be elevated to the Board of
Directors for ratification/approval.

The following are the material-related transactions (RPT) for 2021. 

Directors must avoid any situation or activity that compromises, or may compromise, their judgment or ability to act
in the best interest of the Bank. A Director to fully disclose to the Board any conflict of interest or presumption thereof
involving him/her. This could materially impair his/her judgment, the exercise of duties and responsibilities, and
loyalty to the Bank. Any transaction with a conflict of interest requires the prior approval of the members of the
Board. The Director, who is in a conflict of interest, should not be counted in determining the existence of a quorum
at the Board of Directors’ meeting at which the matter is voted upon.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

Lease of
Motorpool
Building 

 
Lease for

Cantilan Bank
Training Center 

Nature of
Transactions

December 1,
2020- December

1, 2022
 

December 1,
2017 -December

1, 2032
 

Term 

Monthly rental of P
15,000

 
 

Cantilan Bank renovated
and improved the building
with all cost at its account
and 15 years rent -free 

 

Conditions

Hotchkiss
Learning Center  

 
 

Wiliam K.
Hotchkiss

Foundation. Inc. 
 

Related Party 



In compliance with Section X136 of the MORB, the Board approved the Cantilan Bank
Dividend Policy on May 4, 2018, with Board Resolution No. 18-119.

In the policy, the net amount available for dividends shall be seventy percent (70%) of the
retained earnings or defined as the amount of unrestricted or free retained earnings reported in
the Financial Reporting Package (FRP) as of the calendar/fiscal year-end immediately
preceding the date of dividend declaration. Thirty percent (30%) of retained earnings is a
reserve. The liquidity ratio must not fall below twenty-five percent (25%) after the time of the
release of the dividend.
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In compliance with Circular No. 1085, CANBNK, through the support and guidance of the BSP
had crafted a board-approved transition plan that will help strengthen the bank’s current
sustainable finance framework, and lay down more specific strategies and policies for
integrating sustainability principles into the corporate governance and risk management
framework. Our foreseeable timeline for submission is Q2 of 2022.

But prior to the release of the circular, CANBNK had already undertaken initiatives to integrate
sustainability principles in its governance, framework, risk management, business strategy, and
operations. 

Since 1999, Cantilan Bank (CANBNK) has operated within the triple bottom line sustainability
framework, going beyond the traditional measures of profits, return on investment, and
shareholder value to include environmental and social dimensions. CANBNK has since been
aligning its business objectives and strategies with respect to performance along the
interrelated dimensions of profits, people, and the planet to support sustainability goals.
 
As a community bank located in a rural town in Mindanao and operating mostly in some of the
poorest provinces in the Philippines, it is imperative for the bank to help ensure the
sustainability of these communities. A large majority of the country’s population of 100 million
remain unbanked. In the 12 provinces where the bank operates, roughly 35% of the population
lives below the poverty line. CANBNK considers financial inclusion not just as its strategy for
sustainability but as its mandate. The bank’s sustained growth is completely dependent on the
development of the underbanked and unbanked sectors of society. To do this, its products and
services are closely attuned to the needs and capacities of these vulnerable and excluded
market segments.

Financial inclusion was a strategy that was defined by the board as early as 1999 and enshrined
in the bank’s vision and mission statements. The establishment of the Cantilan Bank Foundation
(CBFI) in 2003 further embodied the bank’s social commitment. The CBFI also has its own
three-fold bottom line: financial literacy, social preparation, and environmental sustainability.
Guided by these social goals, the bank was the first rural bank to voluntarily partner with the
Department of Social Welfare and Development in the implementation of the national
government’s Conditional Cash Transfer (4Ps) program, a poverty-reduction strategy that
provides conditional cash assistance to extremely poor households to help improve the health,
nutrition, and education of children aged 0 to 14 years old. To date, CANBNK has serviced the
conditional cash transfer payments of about 600,000 4Ps beneficiaries and offered its micro
deposits product, Student Savers’ Club, to the children of beneficiaries.

COMPLIANCE TO SUSTAINABLE FINANCE FRAMEWORK (CIR 1085)
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The bank’s mission states: “Develop and support financial inclusion and environmental
protection programs.” This supports the bank’s triple bottom line goal. Similarly, CBFI also
counts environmental sustainability as part of its own mission. It is through the foundation that
the bank has projects geared toward environmental protection such as the Bitaog Tree
guardianship program and sustainable farming initiatives. CBFI’s employees are required to
fulfill environmental roles and responsibilities. It has also been part of the bank’s annual CSR
activities to conduct coastal clean-ups and tree planting. 

Understanding the key role of a financial institution in developing communities, while delicately
linking social and environmental efforts to its objectives, CANBNK has led with the following
initiatives which are already aligned with the expectations of BSP Circular No. 1085:

COMPLIANCE TO SUSTAINABLE FINANCE FRAMEWORK (CIR 1085)

To promote sustainable lifestyles and livelihoods, the Bank has been regularly conducting
financial literacy workshops since 1999 in the rural communities for its microfinance (MF) clients,
Indigenous People, the DSWD’s CCT or 4Ps beneficiaries, and Sustainable Livelihood Program
(SLP) beneficiaries as a means to mitigate the number of unbanked individuals in the country
and to enhance the clients’ knowledge in personal and family budgeting, including credit control.
 
All of the bank’s MF borrowers were required to complete week-long basic bookkeeping and
financial management seminar conducted by the bank before they were allowed to take out
loans. This MF program is cashflow-based and uncollateralized; hence, by delivering basic
financial education to its clients, the bank increases the client’s capacity to pay and the
likelihood of successful repayments as well as the sustainability of their clients’ farm-related
enterprises. Furthermore, all the bank’s borrowers are required to open a micro deposits account
and to deposit a small portion of their repayments during each amortization schedule. 

CANBNK was one of the pioneer partners of the DSWD in the 4Ps/CCT disbursement program
since 2010. At its height, CANBNK served 200,000 CCT beneficiaries each month for several
years, reaching even the most remote communities. CANBNK continues to serve the 4Ps
communities as well as the SLP beneficiaries to this day. At the height of the pandemic in 2020,
CANBNK served 16,602 Social Amelioration Program beneficiaries in four provinces.

The Bank also empowers the youth, through its Student Savers’ Club (SSC) which started in
1999, by teaching SSC members how to save money at an early age and preparing them to be
successful and financially responsible adults, and by organizing annual free sports and art
workshops. Our SSC micro-savings product was recognized by the Rafael B. Buenaventura
Foundation as the best micro-savings product in 2017.

A. FINANCIAL LITERACY AND FINANCIAL INCLUSION

CANBNK has always viewed environmental degradation as a major threat to overall national
security and a direct threat to the sustainability of the communities that the bank serves. This is
the main reason why environmental protection is part of our declared mission.

As part of its mission to promote environmental conservation, the bank has been holding tree-
planting and coastal clean-up activities since 1999, oftentimes in partnership with LGUs and
NGOs like the Philippine Eagle Foundation, in order to protect watersheds and remaining forests
and maintain the cleanliness of the adjacent bodies of water in the areas where CANBNK
operates. Moreover, CANBNK employees have been taking the initiative to volunteer themselves
in the greening program of the Department of Environment and Natural Resources, while the
bank also maintains a constant dialogue with its local and national stakeholders in order to
realize what both the bank and its stakeholders aim to achieve for the people and the
environment.

B. ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
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Some specific activities to note:

I. In 2018, CANBNK and CBFI developed a ridge-to-reef conservation program called Inijakan-Forest
and Marine Ecological Park (I-FAME Park) aimed at establishing marine protected areas in Pangi
Cove, Inijakan, Brgy. Gen. Island of the municipality of Cantilan.

II. Cantilan Bank gathered together private and public stakeholders from the five Surigao del Sur
communities of Carrascal, Cantilan, Madrid, Carmen, and Lanuza (CarCanMadCarLan) for
convergence on Sustainable Watersheds held at the Cantilan Bank Training Center on August 20,
2019.

The Convergence on Sustainable Watersheds was kicked off by the signing of a Statement of
Commitment proclaiming all critical watersheds as NO GO ZONES for extractive industries – be it
mineral production or timber harvesting. The five neighboring communities of CarCanMadCarLan
were represented by their respective municipal mayors and other local government representatives.
The Secretary of the Department of Environment and Natural Resources Roy A. Cimatu and
Department of Interior and Local Government Secretary Eduardo M. Año joined the convergence and
witnessed the signing of the Statement of Commitment.

III. On November 14, 2019, the Philippine Eagle Foundation (PEF) was invited to the Convergence
initiative so we can all together protect Mount HilongHilong, a critical watershed that is a known
habitat of our National Bird, the majestic Philippine Eagle. On November 14-19, 2019, the Philippine
Eagle Foundation, The Cornell Lab of Ornithology, and USAID partnered with CANBNK and CBFI and
presented a documentary film that follows a pair of Philippine eagles that protects their young until it
learns to fly off the nest and fend for itself, called Bird of Prey.

The target audiences were the High School students of CCMCL. With today’s environmental crises
and the beginning of mass extinction, we believe that the youth should be the ones to take the lead.
This way, they can be involved in protecting the critical watersheds and species that are vital to our
survival and existence.

IV. Coastal Cleanups and Bitaog Tree Planting activities were also initiated by CBFI and usually take
part during CANBNK’s celebration of its anniversary and World Oceans Day. CANBNK volunteers
also joined in the fight against plastic pollution during the International Coastal Cleanup, promoting
the notion that if we protect the environment, we are also protecting ourselves and the lives of our
clients, especially the next generations.

V. From 2003 to 2013, the CBFI, in coordination with the bank’s Credit and Loans Division and in
partnership with the William K. Hotchkiss Foundation, was primarily engaged in sustainable farming
practices through the development of a model organic farm in Calagdaan, Cantilan to help train the
bank’s microfinance clients and its own microfinance account officers on sustainable farming
practices and to develop these small agri-businesses as models of sustainable enterprises that can
be replicated in the countryside. The farm also served as bitaog and mangrove nurseries as well as
training centers for vermiculture, intercropping, and other organic farming methods. In 2008, CBFI
also established the Banking on Waste program focused on supporting the municipal government in
creating community awareness on recycling and proper waste management. It was also instrumental
in making a garbage recycling and disposal site in Cantilan. Through its Banking on Waste program,
the bank also incentivized local recycling and proper waste management by rewarding participants –
in exchange for “depositing” trash, the bank would deposit small amounts in the client’s savings
account.

Through the foundation, the bank has also provided training on organic farming and backyard farming
methods to 4Ps beneficiaries. CBFI also maintains a bitaog (Palo Maria) tree nursery. The bitaog tree
is an excellent barrier against coastal erosion. The seedlings are then planted by the 4Ps
beneficiaries along the coastal areas of Cantilan.

Meanwhile, the bank has future plans to install solar panels on its corporate headquarters building to
help reduce its environmental impact.

B. ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
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VI. In previous years and in 2020, CANBNK further strengthened its partnership with the
Philippine Eagle Foundation by donating vehicles for PEF’s use in its conservation education
initiatives. In mid-November 2021, CANBNK is supporting the upcoming release of a Philippine
Eagle back into the wild by sponsoring the field equipment for sixteen (16) Indigenous Manobo
Simuwawnon Forest guards who will look after and monitor the eagle after its release. These
forest guards will be trained and deputized by the PEF and DENR.

B. ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

C. SOCIAL PREPARATION

As a service provider for the Conditional Cash Transfer (CCT) program of the Department of
Social Welfare and Development, the Bank has been going the extra mile and providing the 4Ps
beneficiaries with better livelihood opportunities since 2010. The Bank also offers skills
enhancement training amongst local business owners, especially SMEs, through its “Business
Asenso” course. This program, which is in partnership with the Department of Trade and
Industry, helps them learn the basics of accounting and bookkeeping and be equipped in
running their business effectively and sustainably.

D. SUSTAINABLE FINANCE PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT AND DESIGN

Through the years, CANBNK has been embedding sustainability principles into the design of
many of its financial products.

2009 - Starting in 2009, Cantilan Bank partnered with the Small Business Corporation (SBCorp)
and participated in its pilot program for Risk-based Lending (RBL) which offered the following:
capacity building and technical assistance for pilot RBs, alternative compliance mechanisms
(i.e. investment in debt instruments, rediscounting facilities), and the MSME guarantee program
which offered a compelling risk mitigation strategy for RBs, further aligning it with sustainability
objectives.

With the help of this program and policy intervention, we were able to more effectively assist in
the development of the small and medium enterprise markets and design the appropriate
products that better matched the needs of these markets and their attendant risks.
2012 - CANBNK designed the Home Financing Loan (HFL) with sustainability and risk mitigation
strategies in mind. The loan product is guaranteed by the Home Guarantee Corporation (now
Philippine Guarantee Corporation) and allows the bank to sustainably serve the homeowners’
market.

2013 - Ten years after the bank launched its agricultural microfinance product called Pag-uma,
it evolved into the Agri Value Chain (AVC) product. In its recent iteration, the initiative is even
more appropriate to the farmers’ needs and is more inclusive and sustainable – clients who
were previously unqualified because of their cash flow limitations, which were likely linked to
crop cycles or seasons, can now be eligible for unamortized debt financing. Under the Agri
Value Chain program, farmers only need to repay their debt ten days after harvest. Financial
education is delivered by assisting the farmer clients in creating a farm plan with a budget and a
cash flow statement.

Pag-uma evolved further as a response to the demands of the market and to changes in the
physical environment. With increasing vulnerabilities to the effects of climate change being felt
by the rural communities, the bank needed to develop adaptive strategies to help mitigate the
related increase in risk. As a form of risk mitigation, the bank developed its Agri Value Chain
product specifically to counter the future possibility of a decrease in the farmer’s capacity to
pay.
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D. SUSTAINABLE FINANCE PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT AND DESIGN

Agri Value Chain, which supplanted Pag-uma, was developed partly as an adaptive strategy for
climate change. In recent years, it was made clear that the increased weather variability and
increased likelihood of extreme weather events being experienced throughout the country will
continue to contribute to the following: increased risks from rising temperatures, flooding, and
drought; higher rainfall intensity in wet seasons; soil erosion; lower crop productivity; and
reduced agricultural yields. The bank saw the need to mitigate such current and future risks
through product design innovation, facilitation of technology transfer (e.g. climate-
ready/weather-resistant crops), providing financing for inter-cropping/crop diversification, crop
insurance for clients, and guarantees for the bank.

Within the industry, the bank’s efforts have also been recognized as pioneering and innovative
on many fronts including providing financial literacy campaigns, supply chain linkages to large-
scale buyers, and facilitating technology transfer. Through Agri Value Chain, the bank also
facilitates risk transfer by providing crop insurance to the farmer and securing the loan with
microinsurance. Clients are also encouraged to purchase life microinsurance at Php440.00 or
approximately US$10.00 per year.

Additionally, 100% of the Agri Value Chain loan releases are covered by a guarantee from the
Agricultural Guarantee Fund Pool, which considerably minimizes the risk and, thus, increases
the initiative’s sustainability.

By ensuring that the loan repayment schemes were synchronous with the planting and harvest
seasons and not an undue burden to the farmer’s monthly cash flow, and by transferring some
risk away from the farmer through crop insurance and by promoting savings, the bank also helps
ensure the sustainability of the farmer’s enterprise. Further, by encouraging farmers to
aggregate or consolidate their products/output within their associations and linking them to large
buyers, they are able to command better market prices for their goods.

In 2015, CANBNK won the Giordano Dell'Amore Microfinance Best Practices International
Award 2015, recognizing the impact of our AVC product in improving the financial inclusion of
smallholder farmers.

2013-2015 - In partnership with the international NGO, Habitat for Humanity (HFH), CANBNK
developed a commitment savings product called My HOUSE (Home Upgrade through Savings
and Empowerment) which was designed to support sustainable and climate-resilient homes by
providing financial education training to clients and detailed Construction Technical Assistance
(CTA) instructions from HFH.

2019 - Cantilan Bank acknowledged the water and sanitation problem in some parts of the
countryside and answered this problem by offering the WASH Loan product in 2018 through its
partnership with WATER.ORG. It has been helping clients in the construction and repair of
restrooms and facilitating water connections from public utilities, helping communities obtain
safe and clean access to water.

Prior to BSP Circular No. 1085 and in reference to the above-mentioned items, CANBNK has
been actively engaged and paving the way for sustainable finance in rural banking by adopting
the triple bottom line framework.

Additionally, CANBNK adopted the Balanced Scorecard Framework in 2012 which includes the
measuring and monitoring of non-financial performance, such as the bank’s environmental and
social bottom-line, ensuring that the bank always checks on these efforts and strategizes on
what actions to take on next.
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D. SUSTAINABLE FINANCE PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT AND DESIGN

More recently, the CANBNK Board of Directors attended a Webinar on Introduction to
Sustainability and Climate Change and Its Impact last August 6-7, 2020 sponsored by BSP, on
top of management’s participation in various seminars which highlight the relationship between
climate change and finance.

Aside from the aforementioned items of compliance to Circular No. 1085, CANBNK has in recent
years begun discussions on integrating Climate Risk in its client scoring and loan assessment,
where the objective is to influence consumer behavior toward making greener and environment-
friendly choices. Another consideration is to provide financial products and services that would
help clients gain easy access to green and renewable energy. As such, CANBNK would greatly
benefit from more seminars, workshop training, and guidance from BSP in materializing these
prospective plans and in measuring and quantifying impact.

At present, the pandemic has been a main operational challenge in maintaining the bank’s
social and environmental bottom lines, especially since most of these efforts are implemented
outdoors or in a physical space. Hence, one of the things that the bank hopes to achieve is to
transfer some of these onto the digital space, if applicable, such as its financial literacy, Student
Savers’ Club, and stakeholders’ convergence activities. At the same time, we look forward to
slowly transitioning back to our pre-pandemic figures for our highly physical activities (i.e. tree-
planting, coastal cleanup) and working towards improving the programs and objectives.

In 2022, we plan to design and implement a program delivered via our mobile banking channel
that would allow our mobile banking clients to participate in carbon offsetting in partnership with
the Philippine Eagle Foundation’s community-based reforestation and carbon sequestration
initiatives.

To read more about CANBNK’s corporate social responsibility initiatives and CBFI, visit
https://cantilanbank.com/corporate-social-responsibility/. 

COMPLIANCE WITH SUSTAINABLE FINANCE FRAMEWORK

Relative to the training in Compliance with Circular 1085, the Board of Directors attended a
webinar on Introduction to Sustainability and Climate Change and its Impact for BOARD OF
DIRECTORS last August 6-7, 2020. The Human Resource Division will further develop a
training program related to sustainable finance and environmental and social sustainability
framework for the Board of Directors and Employees of the Bank.

Currently, Cantilan Bank Inc. Executive Vice President Tanya P. Hotchkiss is a member of
BSP’s Open Finance Oversight Committee Transition Group.
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Cantilan Bank, Inc. is committed to safeguarding the integrity of the Bank by maintaining a high
level of regulatory compliance. The Compliance Division was created under BSP Circular No.
145, as amended by Circular No. 972 dated August 22, 2017.

The Chief Compliance Officer (CCO) is the lead senior officer to administer the compliance
program and interacts with the BSP on compliance-related issues. The principal function of the
CCO is to oversee the design of an appropriate compliance system, promote effective
implementation, and address breaches that may arise. The CCO also regularly updates the
Bank’s, Compliance Manual.

The Compliance Division is independent of the business activities of the bank. The Compliance
Officer has the right to obtain access to information necessary to carry out its responsibilities, to
conduct investigations of possible breaches of the compliance policy, and the right to direct
access to the Board of Directors and the appropriate board-level Committees. The Division
periodically reports to the Audit and Compliance Committee and the Board of Directors on all
significant compliance issues requiring immediate corrective action.

The Compliance Division is composed of the Chief Compliance Officer, Assistant Compliance
Officer, AML Department, and two sections namely: Anti-Money Laundering (AML) Section, and
the Testing and Monitoring Section.

·AML Section is in charge of compliance risk assessment and testing on anti-money laundering;
suspicious and covered transactions reporting; AML training; and monitoring compliance risk
exposures related to AML.

·Testing and Monitoring Section conducts compliance testing, ensures integrity and accuracy of
documentary requirements, training, monitoring of compliance risk exposures, and performs
review and implementation of specific policies and guidelines.

·Corporate Governance Section handles the Bank’s corporate matters and is the custodian of all
corporate files. It is in charge of the Bank’s correspondence with regulatory bodies.

With the outbreak of COVID-19 in 2020, the Compliance Division is in constant communication
with the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP). The Division provided updates to the Board and
Management on the issued laws on Bayanihan 1 and 2, circulars, and memorandum related to
COVID-19. BSP received regular updates from the bank regarding the issues encountered
during the implementation of the Enhanced Community Quarantine and General Community
Quarantine as well as information on offices closed due to the pandemic.

THE COMPLIANCE DIVISION

SELF-ASSESSMENT FUNCTIONS

Chief Compliance Officer
Colleen Mary C. Barrot

COMPLIANCE ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE

Assistant Compliance Officer
Noreen P. Dela Peña

TESTING AND MONITORING
SECTION

STAFF
Charline Mae Pingol

Anti-Money Laundering Department
Richelle S. Arpilleda

Anti-Money Laundering
Section

STAFF
Charline Mae Pingol



As Cantilan Bank is in the recovery stage of the pandemic, IA continues to provide independent
assurance over the consequential risks. Increasing the role of audit in advising management
and the board on the shifting risk and the internal control framework, including anticipating new
emerging risks. Audit functions are using technology to better access and share information,
work with stakeholders, conduct virtual engagements, and tests new assurance method
continuing to find creative ways to develop and promote a positive culture. Audit functions have
found success in optimizing the use of Instafin and using online conferences to connect to the
employees in the branches during off-site/remote audits. Changing audit processes requires
extra vigilance that needs to cultivate a more intentional and adaptive mindset. With this, IA
comes up with a methodology for conducting on-site audits to branches with a high-risk rating
and off-site audits to branches with low and moderate risk ratings.

The challenges IA faced for the year include personnel movement as the Head of Internal Audit
Mr. Clemente T. Coquilla, Jr. rendered his retirement. Two auditors rendered their resignations
for family reasons. The Special Audit Department in the audit division has been integrated into
General Audit Department to utilize manpower efficiency. Along with these manpower
adjustments IA was able to have an 87% accomplishment for the year 2021 and the remaining
13% of audit activities have been carried over for 2022. 

When typhoon Odette struck, IA become an adaptable team player and contributor to the
bank’s disruptions to become more resilient, cost-conscious, and smarter in assessing controls
and risks.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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SELF-ASSESSMENT FUNCTIONS

Internal Audit Head
Bonie Lyn E. Catuburan

THE INTERNAL AUDIT STRUCTURE

Gen. Audit Dept.
Hazel T. Tumalon

IT Audit Dept.
Sarah Kristina B. Balsicas

Post Credit  Review Dept.
Rey A. Canda

Senior Auditors
Michelle Ann S. Digal
Jenniefee D. Cabahug

Senior Auditor

Junior Auditor
Jean Carmen G. Tiu

Junior Auditors
 Merlie Mae S. Mollaneda

Senior Auditor

Junior Auditor



CANBNK supported the Philippine Eagle Foundation by sponsoring
the 24k worth of field gear of the sixteen (16) Indigenous Manobo
Simuwawnon Forest guards who look after and monitor the eagle after
its release. This is part of CANBNK's commitment to sustainability and
environmental protection.

Cantilan Bank witnessed the release of Philippine eagle named “Rajah
Cabungsuan” which was given a chance to thrive in the forest last
Nov. 17, 2021 in Brgy. Rajah Cabungsuan, Lingig Surigao del Sur.
“Rajah Cabungsuan”, a male eagle rehabilitated and cared for by the
PEF team at the Philippine Eagle Center after it was rescued last
March 2021. The eagle was accidentally caught in a native trap
intended for deer and wild pigs.

"Environmental degradation is the biggest national security threat
nowadays. This is why CANBNK is committed to helping protect the
environment by partnering with Philippine Eagle Foundation." -
CANBNK Chairman, Lt Gen William K. Hotchkiss III (RET). 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

RELEASE OF PHILIPPINE EAGLE RAJAH CABUNGSUAN
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The Consumer Protection Risk Management System (CPRMS) enables Cantilan Bank to identify,
measure, monitor, and control customer protection risks inherent in its operations. 

Consumer protection laws, rules, and regulations are being followed in order to prevent any harm or
financial loss to the Bank or its customers. It provides the foundation for ensuring the Bank adheres
to the Consumer Protection standards of conduct.

Cantilan Bank uses the CPRMS as a means to safeguard the needs and interests of its consumers
at all times underpinned by well-maintained consumer protection policies on risk management.

CONSUMER PROTECTION RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM OF CANBNK

The Bank’s Board of Directors is responsible for ensuring that the policies of Bangko Sentral ng
Pilipinas on Consumer Protection are being well implemented throughout the overall operations of
the bank.

The Senior Management, on the other hand, has a role to keep the Board of Directors properly
informed about the bank’s performance on such matters. The board should review policies and
reports for counter-checking on a regular basis. Senior Management reports to the board on a
regular basis.

Cantilan Bank follows its existing operational channels in handling customer feedback
(complaints/suggestions). It has designated its Branch Heads to serve as the Consumer Protection
Officers (CPOs), while the Branch Marketing Assistants (BMAs) take responsibility for assessing the
process. In the absence of the BMA, the Customer Relations Associate (CRA) will take over the
responsibility. The CPOs then report all received customer feedback to the Head Consumer
Protection Officer (HCPO) assigned at Headquarters. The HCPO will then submit a summary report
of feedback to the Consumer Protection Unit (CPU). The Board will also be provided with a monthly
report of feedback with actions taken for their review and discussion.

Moreover, different communication channels such as e-mail, website, Facebook, SMS, telephone,
and suggestion boxes are made available to clients for their complaints and/or suggestions. The
Consumer Protection Unit manages these channels and uses them in reaching out to concerned
customers.

Cantilan Bank's Consumer Protection Unit (CPU) strengthened its monitoring of complaints and
reports. In 2018, a database was developed for monitoring ATM-related complaints. The system
can log complaints and generate reports.

CONSUMER PROTECTION PRACTICES
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CONSUMER PROTECTION PRACTICES

CANBNK's Consumer Protection Unit (CPU) works under the Office of Strategic
Management and is in direct compliance with the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas’ requirement
to effectively monitor and address consumer complaints.

With the help of the IT Division, the CPU created a database for branches and offices to
record customer complaints about ATMs. The database can be accessed by both the
Consumer Protection Unit and the ATM Reconciliation Team for faster processing and
resolution.

A regular orientation among Consumer Assistance Officers and new hires has been included
in the list of training to be conducted by the Consumer Protection Unit. This is to properly
inform them of their role in complaints handling and recording.

Now that the Bank has developed a more comprehensive data-capturing mechanism, it is
now capable of comprehensively capturing both ATM-related and non-ATM-related
complaints, which are regularly reported to the level of the Senior Management up to the
Board. Internal Audit Division will examine the overall processes of the Consumer Protection
Unit.
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CONSUMER PROTECTION UNIT

STATISTICS OF COMPLAINTS

 www.can t i l anbank .com

SUMMARY OF COMPLAINTS FOR THE YEAR 2021

ATM
COMPLAINTS

OTHER
COMPLAINTS

RECEIVED

SETTLED
COMPLAINTS

UNSETTLED
COMPLAINTS

1,610 15 31622
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ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE

Board  of Directors

Audit &
Compliance
Committee

Credit
CommitteeExecutive

Committee

Corporate
Governance
Committee

Office of the
Corporate Secretary

 

INTERNAL AUDIT DIVISION
(BONIELYN CATUBURAN)

 
-General Audit Department 
-Special Audit Department 
-IT Audit Department 
-Post Credit Review Dept. 

COMPLIANCE DIVISION
(COLLEEN MARY BARROT)

-Anti-Money Laundering
-Testing and Monitoring
-Corporate Governance

President / CSO
 

Brig. Gen. Charles Y. Hotchkiss (Ret)

Executive Vice President / CTO
 

Tanya P. Hotchkiss

Office of Strategic Management
(TANYA P. HOTCHKISS)

 
-Marketing Department 
-Research and Development
Department
-Planning and Budgeting 
-External Affairs Department

Legal Services Division
(JOAN WALTER PLAZA)

 
-Litigation Department 
-Real & Other Properties
Administration Department

Corporate Services Group
 

Operations Group
 

Human Resource Division
(GRACE NAUMI A. LIM)

 
-HR Development Department
-HR Admin. Department 

Information Technology
Division

(ARCHIE T. MIRANDA)

-System Administration
Department
-Network Administration
-Database Administration
Department
-Application Devt. & Maintenance

 

Logistics Division
(JOEL J. SUAREZ)

-General Service Department 
-Construction and Engineering
Department 
-Logistics Administration Department

Credit & Loans Division
(ALBINO A. DUERO)

-Secured Loans Department 
-Regular Loans Department 
-Microfinance and AVC Lending Department 
-Credit and Loans Admin. Department
-Operational Training Department
-Collections and Remedial Department 

Fund Management Division
(SHERYL G. ASIO)

 
-Fund Sourcing and Rediscounting Department
-Cash Management Department 

Branch Banking Division 
(RICO C. GUERTA)

 
-Deposit Remittances and Other
Services Department 
-Branch Banking Admin Department 
- Branches

 

Accounting Division 
(REBECCA A. RAVELO)

 
-Branch Accounting & Consolidation
Department
-Corporate Accounting & Reports
Department 
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Security Group Credit Risk Management Division
(REMYBERT TRUGILLO)

 
-Credit Review Department
- Central CIBI Department
- Central Appraisal Department

IT Steering
Committee

- Assistant Security Office
-Information Security Division

DIGITAL CHANNELS DIVISION 
(ALAN B. MONTEROSO)

 
-ATM Department
-Mobile Banking Department

 



HOTCHKISS, WILLIAM III 
HOTCHKISS, MA. TERESA
PICHAY, PROSPERO, JR.
HOTCHKISS, EDWARD
JULVE, HERMILA 
HOTCHKISS, CHARLES
ARREZA, JULIA
ONG, FERMINA 
ARREZA, WENCESLAO
HOTCHKISS, TANYA
JULVE, ROLANDO
PALANG, JEANA
ORTEGA, LUCIANO
COSMIANO, MARGARITA
HOTCHKISS, STEVEN
MUÑOZ, PEPITA
HARTBERG, SALOME
MUÑOZ, RENE
GO, JOCELYN
ARREZA, DESERREE

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.

10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
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MAJOR STOCKHOLDERS

Name of Stockholders

15.1752%
12.4752%

9.043%
4.5667%
4.1659%
3.5483%
3.1937%
2.8454%
2.4416%
2.4228%
1.8515%
1.3742%
1.3708%
1.2336%
1.1616%
1.0357%
0.8784%
0.8159%
0.7792%
0.7699%
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Nationality

Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino

Percentage of Stockholdings



Regular Savings Deposit
An interest-bearing deposit evidenced by a passbook can be withdrawn anytime within banking
hours. Withdrawal can be made upon presentation of a properly filled-out withdrawal slip together
with the corresponding passbook.
 
Regular Time Deposit
Time Deposits represent interest-bearing deposits with specific maturity dates and are evidenced
by certificate of time deposit provided by the Bank.  

Medium-Term Time Deposit
An interest-bearing time deposit with a term of 3 years or 1,080 days and evidenced by a Certificate
of Medium-Term Time Deposit issued by the Bank.
 
Premium Time Deposit
Premium Time Deposits are interest-paying deposits with a fixed term of five years and are issued
with bank certificates.
 
CANBNK ATM Debit Card 
A savings deposit product using a CANBNK ATM debit card. This product is being developed to
respond to the needs of our growing community by giving them more access to convenient non-
stop banking services.

Current Account
Also known as a checking account or demand deposit account. A non-interest-bearing deposit is
subject to withdrawal by the issuance of checks.
 
Student Savers’ Club
A deposit product primarily designed for school children. We wish that more people would get into
the habit of saving, so we start with the children. As much as possible, children should learn sound
money habits early and how to handle their money well.

Commitment Savings Deposit Account
A passbook-based interest-bearing savings deposit auto-debited from clients’ payroll accounts.
The clients’ payroll account will be the source account while the CSDA is the recipient account.

Agri Value-Chain 
An individual loan intended to provide affordable and customized credit facilities to qualified small
farmers engaged in crop production, poultry, livestock raising, and aquaculture. Members of a
certified farmers’ organization are automatically eligible to avail of this product.
 
Business Enterprise Loan 
An individual loan intended to provide accessible, affordable credit facilities to Small and Medium
Enterprise (SME) borrowers. A change in mindset from collateral-based lending to risk-based
lending. Risk-based lending simply means that the bank has a systematic way of assessing,
identifying, quantifying, classifying, and mitigating credit risks.
 
Back-to-Back Loan
An individual loan was granted to CBI depositors. This product aims to provide depositors with
affordable and customizable options for a wide range of purposes, from investment to personal or
family use.

PRODUCTS & SERVICES
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DEPOSITS

LOANS
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Salary Loan 
A loan product intended for regular government-paid employees and those working in private
institutions who have established sound financial standing in the community supported by the
growth in manpower generation and tested by the bank’s credit record over the past years.

Pension Loan
A credit line for eligible pensioners. A borrower can take a loan of up to 80% of his monthly net
pension pay.
 
KITA (Kita Insakto Tipon Asenso)
KITA stands for Kita Insakto (Sufficient Income), Tipon (Bigger Savings), Asenso (Growth). This
product aims to provide opportunities for microenterprise operators to expand their business
activities, increase their income, improve their capacity to save, and enhance their status as
productive members of their respective communities.
 
HFL (Home Financing Loan)
HFL is categorized into 2 types: HFL Small & HFL Secured.
 
HFL Small
A loan product to cater to the housing needs of individuals who do not have the complete
documents necessary for a real estate mortgage. This loan product is also for those who are in
need of bridge financing. It focuses on clients with sufficient sources of income and a stellar credit
record.

HFL Secured
A loan product for clients with sufficient sources of income and with real property to offer as
collateral. This is for clients who want to avail of loans for their housing needs but are not limited
to house construction, including residential lot purchase and house repairs.
 
Agricultural loan
A loan product intended for farmers for agricultural crop production and agricultural equipment
acquisition.

LIFE (Life Insurance & Investment for Entrepreneurs)
An individual loan intended for qualified existing AVC and KITA loan clients as incentive for
establishing a good repayment record. This is an add-in product co-terminus to the main loan
availed.
 
AVC Farm Equipment Loan
An individual loan intended for acquisition of farm equipment for small-hold farmers (ex. water
pump, diesel engine, accessories, installation of farm equipment).

Ordinary Secured
This loan aims to help targeted client expand their present business, farming and other activities
to include consumption or any other personal related purposes. It focuses on clients with sufficient
sources of income and with real property to offer as collateral.

Fringe Benefit Loans (FB Loans) 
This is a credit window provided by the Bank to its officers and employees to meet their housing,
personal & emergency needs. This loan is categorized into 3 namely;

FB Housing
This loan is intended to be used to acquire a residential house and lot, to construct a residential
house or lot, or to repair a residential house owned and occupied by the employee. This loan also
refinances existing housing loans from other financial institutions.
 
FB Chattel
This loan is for the acquisition of vehicles, household equipment, appliances, and other personal
assets for his/her personal use or immediate family.

FB Salary
It is intended to provide financial assistance to Bank employees such as payment for utility bills,
medical needs, education and other immediate financial needs.

PRODUCTS & SERVICES
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WASH 
The purpose of this loan is to finance water access, sanitation, and hygiene projects, including
water connection, comfort room construction, repair, and improvement, filtration, and rainwater
harvesting.

Barangay Honorarium
It is a credit window intended to provide affordable and customized credit facilities to all Barangay
officers and other local government employees. This is because it has an active Memorandum of
Agreement regarding automatic payroll deduction. It is designed to respond to the unique
condition of the target market. It is expected to achieve profitability and a more efficient and
effective lending delivery system for the Bank.

Merchant Revolving Fund (MeRF)
A credit facility for business operators who wants to engage in mobile app fund transfer services.

Inter-branch Deposit
A deposit is placed at a CBI branch other than the branch where the account is maintained, to
fund a savings or check-deposit account.

Inter-branch Withdrawal
A withdrawal can be made at any branch other than the branch where the account is maintained.

Inward Inter-bank Fund Transfer
A deposit made from any conduit banks (e.g. DBP, PNB, RCBC, LBP, UCPB, BPI, BDO & MBTC)
to fund a CBI’s savings or checking deposit accounts.

Outward Inter-bank Fund Transfer
A transfer made at any branch of Cantilan Bank, to fund any non-Cantilan Bank savings accounts
or checking accounts.

Western Union
A remittance service offered by the bank as sub-agent of PETNET, Inc. under the Western Union
Money Remittances.

ATM Services
Bancnet-powered ATMs are installed in some branches and extension offices, as well as in other
strategic locations.

POS (Point-Of-Sale)
Alternative cash out facility instead of ATM for Debit and Cash Card withdrawals. The amount
withdrawn shall be credited to the settlement account of CBI and the cardholder shall be paid by
the bank representative of the amount withdrawn.

EasyDebit
A payment processing solution using a micro ATM Device and an Android Smart Phone
application to enable customers to withdraw cash from their existing bank accounts using their
debit ATM cards or to perform cash advances from their credit card accounts.

Payroll Servicing
CANBNK is currently engaged in payroll servicing for some government and private agencies to
provide a higher level of convenience and reduce embedded risks for the employees and payroll
in-charges of the agencies.

iCAN Mobile Banking App
A mobile banking app that delivers safe and secure cashless financial services 24 hours a day,
seven days a week. It provides access to core transactions, including bills payment, fund
transfers, prepaid phone reloading, and balance inquiry using a smartphone.

PRODUCTS & SERVICES
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Collection of Utility Bills
It is a utility bill collection service that allows billers enrolled in this type of service to easily
collect payments from customers.

DSWD-CCT-OTC
A service that effectively and efficiently delivers cash grants to non-cash Card or non-
prepaid card Conditional Cash Transfer (CCT) beneficiaries in areas where LANDBANK
Branches and automated teller machines (ATMs) are not available.

i2i
This platform has three main features, i.e., wallet-to-wallet fund transfer, online fund transfer
(i.e. through InstaPay and PesoNet), and bills payment.

CB-Kalinga MicroInsurance
A micro-insurance product of Country Bankers Life Insurance Corp. (CBLIC) that aims to
meet the need of low-income sector clients for their risk protection and relief against
distress, misfortune and other contingent events.

Alalay Sa Buhay Microinsurance
A micro-insurance product of Country Bankers Life Insurance Corp. (CBLIC)

Nego Asenso Microinsurance
A micro-insurance product of Bankers Assurance Corp. (BAC) under Malayan Group of
Insurance Companies, supplementing the existing micro insurance especially in the aspect of
Fire assistance.

Cashko - Cantilan Family Shield
It is a family protection plan that provides benefits against PA, Dengue, Leptospirosis, and
Chikungunya. Burial and fire assistance are also included. It is entry-level insurance for all
depositors, micro-Kita and Agri-Value Chain borrowers. It is an alternative offer to the
current life insurance product bundled with the APP Program with full family health coverage

Cashko - Cantilan Pamana Plan
It is a form of protection that covers accidents that cause death. This insurance product is
designed with extended benefits for accident-caused medical expenses and burial
assistance. Designed for all depositors and borrowers, the premium mode can be paid on a
monthly basis. This product is mandatory insurance coverage for all salary loans borrowers.

PRODUCTS & SERVICES
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Orozco St., Magosilom, Cantilan, Surigao del Sur

San Isidro St., Brgy. Linibunan,Madrid, Surigao del Sur

Osmeña St., Bag-ong lungsod, Tandag, Surigao del Sur

P-Sampaguita, Brgy. Aras-asan, Cagwait, Surigao del Sur

P-2 Brgy. Hornasan, San Agustin, Surigao del Sur

Nat'l Highway, P-Kauswagan, Poblacion, Marihatag, Surigao del Sur

Nat'l Higway, Brgy. Ladgaron, Claver, Surigao del Norte

Nat'L Highway,P-2 ,Brgy. Tag-anito, Claver, Surigao del Norte

P-4 Brgy. Bad-as, Placer, Surigao del Norte

P-7 Brgy. Tina, San Miguel, Surigao del Sur

P-1,Burgos St., Brgy. Navarro, Socorro, Surigao del Norte

Purok 1 Nat'l Higway-Poblacion, Tagbina, Surigao del Sur

Nazareno St.,Brgy. Aquino, Hinatuan, Surigao del Sur

Purok 1 Nat'l Highway, Poblacion, Barobo, Surigao del Sur

Brgy. Gamuton, Alegria, Surigao del Norte

Rizal St., Purok 6, Poblacion 1, Santiago, Agusan del Norte

Parrucho St. Brgy. Washington, Surigao City, Surigao del Norte

Brgy. San Ignacio North Montilla Blvd., Butuan City, Agusan del Norte

Brgy. Tungao, Butuan City, Agusan del Norte

E. Curato St., Brgy. 3, Cabadbaran, Agusan del Norte

P-3, Brgy. 5, Rotonda, San Francisco, Agusan del Sur

Circumferencial Road, Bayanihan, Magugpo West, Tagum City

P-2,Cambanogoy, Poblacion, Asuncion, Davao del Norte

Purok 6, Feeder Road 2,Tibal-og, Sto. Tomas, Davao del Norte

Doors 5 & 6 LA Bldg., Lapu-Lapu St., Brgy 15-B, Davao City

Pesacico Bldg., Market Side, Brgy.9 Malaybalay City, Bukidnon

OJLC Bldg. P 26 Datu Abeng St., Calinan, Davao City

P-1 A Rizal St., Poblacion, Lingig, Surigao del Sur

Abarca St.,Brgy. Mangagoy, Bislig, Surigao del Sur

Silverio St., Poblacion Cateel, Davao Oriental

P-3, Rizal St., Poblacion, Lianga, Surigao del Sur

Barangay Loyonsawang Poblacion, Abuyog, Leyte

R.V. Fulache St., Eastern Barangay, Hilongos, Leyte

National Road, Zone 5, Sogod, Southern Leyte

Del Pilar St., Barangay 11, Dapa, Surigao del Norte

P-5 Brgy. Del Carmen, Del Carmen, Surigao del Norte

P-4 Brgy. Del Carmen, San Isidro, Surigao del Norte

P-2 Brgy. Poblacion, General Luna, Siargao Island, Surigao del Norte

Purok 8 Poblacion, Prosperidad, Agusan del Sur

Narra Avenue, National Highway, Bayugan City, Agusan del Sur

Purok 3, Poblacion, La Paz, Agusan del Sur

Sta. Teresita St. Evangelio Ave.,Purok 1, Poblacion, Nabunturan, Compostela
Valley

Romcar Dev't. Inc. Bldg. Purok Malipayon II, Rizal St., Poblacion Lupon, Davao
Oriental

Nat'l Highway, Brgy. 1, Buenavista, Agusan del Norte

Veterans St. Villahermosa Bldg. Brgy. 17, Gingoog City, Misamis Oriental

R.V. Fulache St., Eastern Brgy, Hilongos, Leyte

BRANCHES & OFFICES
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BRANCHES BRANCH LITE
UNITS ADDRESSES

1.Cantilan

2.Madrid

3.Tandag

4.San Agustin

5.Claver

6.San Miguel

7.Socorro

8.Tagbina

9.Alegria

10.Surigao City

11.Butuan City

12.San Francisco

13.Tagum City

14.Davao City

15.Lingig

16.Lianga

17.Abuyog

18.Dapa

19.Prosperidad

20.Nabunturan

21.Lupon

22.Buenavista

23.Trento

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Aras-asan
 
 
 

Marihatag
 
 
 

Taganito
 

Bad-as
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Hinatuan
 

Barobo
 
 
 

Santiago
 
 
 
 
 

Tungao
 

Cabadbaran
 
 
 
 
 

Asuncion
 

Sto. Tomas
 
 
 

Malaybalay
 

Calinan
 
 
 

Mangagoy
 

Cateel
 
 
 
 
 

Hilongos
 

Sogod
 
 
 

Del Carmen
 

San Isidro
 

General Luna
 
 
 

Bayugan
 

La Paz
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Gingoog
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AGUSAN DEL NORTE * Buenavista * Butuan City * Cabadbaran Branch * Santiago * Tungao AGUSAN DEL SUR *
Bayugan * La Paz * Prosperidad   *San Francisco * Trento * BUKIDNON * Malaybalay * COMPOSTELA VALLEY *
Nabunturan * DAVAO DEL NORTE * Asuncion * sto. Tomas  *Tagum  DAVAO DEL SUR  * Calinan * Davao City *
DAVAO ORIENTAL * Cateel * Lupon * LEYTE * Abuyog * Hilongos * MISAMIS ORIENTAL  *Gingoog City
SOUTHERN LEYTE * Sogod * SURIGAO DEL NORTE * Alegria * Bad-as * Claver * Dapa * Del Carmen * General
Luna * San Isidro * Socorro * Surigao City * Taganito * SURIGAO DEL SUR * Aras-asan *  Barobo * Cantilan *
Hinatuan * Lianga * Lingig * Madrid  *Mangagoy * Marihatag * San Agustin * San Miguel * Tagbina * Tandag City 

BRANCHES AND BRANCH LITES



ALEGRIA OFFICE- 09778155350
alegria@cantilanbank.com

ABUYOG OFFICE- 09364128244
abuyog@cantilanbank.com

ARAS-ASAN OFFICE-
09778155386
arasasan@cantilanbank.com

ASUNCION OFFICE- 09778155414
asuncion@cantilanbank.com

BAYUGAN OFFICE- 09778155461
bayugan@cantilanbank.com

BAD-AS OFFICE- 09778155455
badas@cantilanbank.com

BAROBO OFFICE- 09778155388
barobo@cantilanbank.com

BUENAVISTA OFFICE-
09778155345
buenavista@cantilanbank.com

BUTUAN OFFICE- 09778155369
butuan@cantilanbank.com

CABADBARAN OFFICE-
09778155396
cabadbaran@cantilanbank.com

CALINAN OFFICE- 09514143025
calinan@cantilanbank.com

CANTILAN OFFICE- 09778155338
main@cantilanbank.com

CATEEL OFFICE- 09959222712
cateel@cantilanbank.com

CLAVER OFFICE- 09778155325
claver@cantilanbank.com

DAPA OFFICE- 09778155378
dapa@cantilanbank.com

DAVAO OFFICE- 09778155331
davao@cantilanbank.com

DEL CARMEN OFFICE - 09778155435
delcarmen@cantilanbank.com

GEN.LUNA OFFICE- 09359160568
generalluna@cantilanbank.com

GINGOOG OFFICE- 09778155372
gingoog@cantilanbank.com

HINATUAN OFFICE- 09778155397
hinatuan@cantilanbank.com

HILONGOS OFFICE- 09959142285
HILONGOS@CANTILANBANK.COM

LA PAZ OFFICE- 09184494432
lapaz@cantilanbank.com

LIANGA OFFICE- 09778155360
lianga@cantilanbank.com

LINGIG OFFICE- 09778137690
lingig@cantilanbank.com

LUPON OFFICE- 09778155340
lupon@cantilanbank.com

MADRID OFFICE - 09778155339
madrid@cantilanbank.com

MALAYBALAY OFFICE- 09173110688
malaybalay@cantilanbank.com

MARIHATAG OFFICE- 09778155399
marihatag@cantilanbank.com

MANGAGOY OFFICE- 09778155417
mangagoy@cantilanbank.com

NABUNTURAN OFFICE-
09778155383
nabunturan@cantilanbank.com

PROSPERIDAD OFFICE-
09778155385
prosperidad@cantilanbank.com

SANTIAGO OFFICE- 09778155422
santiago@cantilanbank.com

SAN AGUSTIN OFFICE- 09985504379
sanagustin@cantilanbank.com

SAN ISIDRO OFFICE - 09092678120
sanisidro@cantilanbank.com

SAN FRANCISCO OFFICE -
09778155376
sanfrancisco@cantilanbank.com

SAN MIGUEL OFFICE - 09778155358
sanmiguel@cantilanbank.com

SOCORRO OFFICE - 09778155324
socorro@cantilanbank.com

SOGOD OFFICE- 09778155362
sogod@cantilanbank.com

STO.TOMAS OFFICE- 09156210816
sto.tomas@cantilanbank.com

SURIGAO OFFICE - 09778155364
surigao@cantilanbank.com

TAGANITO OFFICE- 09778155401
taganito@cantilanbank.com

TAGBINA OFFICE - 09778155356
tagbina@cantilanbank.com

TAGUM OFFICE - 09778155366
tagum@cantilanbank.com

TANDAG OFFICE - 09778155348
tandag@cantilanbank.com

TRENTO OFFICE - 09778155411
trento@cantilanbank.com

TUNGAO OFFICE- 09985397306
tungao@cantilanbank.com

CONTACT DETAILS
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CLIENT
TESTIMONIAL

Mrs. Julieta Cervantes Quiñonez is 67 yrs. old client of Cantilan Bank, married, with 7

children, and currently living in Tago, Surigao del Sur. She is a housewife; her

husband is a tricycle driver. 

The hardship in getting her children to school then, drives her to borrow from the

bank and her acquaintances who are loan clients of Cantilan Bank enticed her to

borrow from Cantilan Bank. 

Her initial approved loan amount was Php 5000 way back in 2010 for the Kita loan

until the amount increased to over 1 million pesos. Currently, she has an outstanding

Housing Loan with Cantilan Bank which helped her build their 2-story house. 

Being a client of Cantilan Bank for 12 years, she is very thankful because she was

able to send her children to college; of her 7 children, five were able to finish

college (2 are working abroad while one is a teacher). Her children helped her build

their new home that is worth Php 2M. 

Cantilan Bank has been part of her life and will always be part of her journey. She is

a loyal customer because she will not be where she is today if not for Cantilan Bank. 

Julieta Quiñonez
HFL  client
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